
WOODBURY COUNTY 
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

Monday, March 4, 2024 at 6:00 PM 
The Woodbury County Board of Adjustment will hold a public meeting on Monday, March 4, 2024 at 6:00 PM in 
the Board of Supervisors’ meeting room in the Basement of the Woodbury County Courthouse, 620 Douglas 
Street, Sioux City, IA.  Please use the 7th St. entrance.  Public access to the conversation of the meeting will also 
be made available during the meeting by telephone. Persons wanting to participate in the public meeting may 
attend in person or call: (712) 454-1133 and enter the Conference ID: 742 346 123# during the meeting to listen 
or comment.  It is recommended to attend in person as there is the possibility for technical difficulties with phone 
and computer systems. 

AGENDA

1 CALL TO ORDER 

2 ROLL CALL 

3 ELECTION OF CHAIR OF BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT FOR 2024 

4 ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIR OF BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT FOR 2024 

5 PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA 

6 APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES: 10/2/23 

7 ITEM(S) OF ACTION / BUSINESS 

» ACTION ITEM: PUBLIC HEARING - CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION: 
DISTURBANCE OF EARTHEN MATERIALS, IMPORT OF EARTHEN MATERIALS, 
CRUSHING AGGREGATE MATERIALS, STAGING CRUSHED AGGREGATE 
TEMPORARILY, EXPORTING CRUSHED AGGREGATE, AND RECTIFYING THE SITE: 
PARCEL #: 894632300022  
JB Holland Construction (Applicant) and James A. Orr (Owner) have submitted a conditional use permit (CUP) 
application to use the property located on Parcel #894632300022 in T89N R46W (Concord Township), in the SE ¼ 
of the SW ¼ of Section 32, General Commercial (GC) Zoning District, as a location to support the north bound 
Highway 20 project by using the site for the “disturbance of earthen materials, import of earthen materials, crushing 
aggregate materials, staging crushed aggregate temporarily, exporting crushed aggregate, and rectifying the site.”  
The property is located east of Sioux City and less than 700 FT from the corporate boundary.  The property is not 
located within the Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA).  The requested uses are acceptable for the consideration of a 
CUP and compatible with Sections 3.03.3 and 3.03.4 of the Zoning Ordinance including the association with 
temporary heaving construction services uses such as aggregate crush & screen (temporary). 

1



» INFORMATION ITEM – PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SECTION 5.03: FLOODPLAIN 
MANAGEMENT ORDINANCE IN THE WOODBURY COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE 
The Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) and the Iowa Department of Natural Resources (IDNR) are 
requiring Woodbury County to update the floodplain management portion of the zoning ordinance in anticipation for 
when the draft flood insurance rate maps (FIRMs) go into effect on July 17, 2024.  The Zoning Commission will need 
to review the proposed changes at a future public hearing, to be determined, in preparation for a recommendation to 
the Board of Supervisors.  The following sections will be requested to be considered for amendments: Section 5.03.1 
AA; Section 5.03.3 B; Section 5.03.10 B(4); Section 5.03.10 C(2).  The draft floodplain maps are available for 
inspection online at: https://ifis.iowafloodcenter.org/ifis/newmaps/hazard/

» INFORMATION ITEM – DISCUSSION ABOUT THE WOODBURY COUNTY 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
 2040 
A discussion about the steps ahead for the Woodbury County Comprehensive Plan for 2040.  The contents of the 
plan include the purpose; a community profile; housing; economic development; transportation; public infrastructure 
& utilities; community facilities & services; land use & natural resources; disaster response, recovery, & resiliency; 
implementation & administration.  The draft comprehensive plan is available for inspection online at: 
http://tinyurl.com/Woodbury2040

8 PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA 

9 STAFF UPDATE 

10 BOARD MEMBER COMMENT OR INQUIRY 

11 ADJOURN 

2



PACKET CONTENTS 

Board of Adjustment Draft Minutes 

ACTION ITEM: PUBLIC HEARING - CONDITIONAL USE 
PERMIT APPLICATION: DISTURBANCE OF EARTHEN 
MATERIALS, IMPORT OF EARTHEN MATERIALS, 
CRUSHING AGGREGATE MATERIALS, STAGING 
CRUSHED AGGREGATE TEMPORARILY, EXPORTING 
CRUSHED AGGREGATE, AND RECTIFYING THE SITE: 
PARCEL #: 894632300022 

INFORMATION ITEM – PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO 
SECTION 5.03: FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT ORDINANCE 
IN THE WOODBURY COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE 

INFORMATION ITEM – DISCUSSION ABOUT THE 
WOODBURY COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 2040 

3

4

5

59

94



1 

Minutes - Woodbury County Board of Adjustment – October 2, 2023 

The Board of Adjustment meeting convened on the 2nd of October 2023 at 6:00 PM in the Board of Supervisors’ meeting room 
in the Basement of the Woodbury County Courthouse.  The meeting was also made available for public access via 
teleconference.   

For specific content of this meeting, refer to the recorded post on the Woodbury County Board of Adjustment YouTube channel. 

BA Members Present : Daniel Hair, Doyle Turner, Ashley Christensen, Tom Thiesen 
County Staff Present:  Dan Priestley, Dawn Norton 
Public Present: Rebekah Moerer, Elizabeth Widman 
Teleconference Present: Shane McIntyre  

Call to Order 
Chair Daniel Hair formally called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 

Public Comment on Matters Not on the Agenda 
None 

Approval of Minutes 
The July 31, 2023, minutes were approved. Motion by Christensen to approve; Second by Thiesen. Motion passed 4-0. 

Public Hearing: To Consider for Approval, A Conditional Use Permit Application – Proposed Telecommunication Tower 
120 FT Monopole on Parcel #874316300005 
Priestley read the staff report into record.  AMG Technology Investment Group dba Nexlink have filed a conditional use permit 
application to request to install a 120 FT monopole communication tower to supply high speed internet to surrounding areas on 
Parcel #874316300005.  The proposed location is around 2.5 miles south of Anthon and about 4.2 miles northeast of Oto.  This 
proposal has been noticed in the Sioux City Journals legal section on September 14, 2023.  The neighbors within one (1) mile 
were duly notified via a September 13, 2023 letter about the October 2, 2023 Board of Adjustment public hearing.  Appropriate 
stakeholders including government agencies, utilities, and organizations have been requested to comment.  This property is 
located in the Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District.  Based on the information received and the requirements set forth in 
the Zoning Ordinance, the proposal meets the appropriate criteria for approval of the conditional use request.  It is the 
recommendation of staff to approve the proposal.  At their meeting on September 25, 2023, the Woodbury County Zoning 
Commission voted 5-0 to recommend approval of this conditional use permit application.  Shane McIntyre from Nextlink spoke 
via phone about the project.  Motion to close public hearing: Christensen. Second: Thiesen. Carried 4-0.  Motion by Thiesen:  
Second Turner, to the approval of instillation and use of a 120 FT monopole communication tower as submitted.  All local, State, 
and Federal regulations must be followed. Motion carried: 4-0. 

Information: Utility-Scale Solar Energy Systems (US-SEC) Consideration Process 
Priestley offered an update about the Utility-Scale Solar Energy Zoning Ordinance Amendment consideration process.  The 
Woodbury County Zoning Commission was directed by the Board of Supervisors on August 8, 2023 to establish/examine a new 
ordinance as it relates to utility-scale solar systems.  The Zoning Commission held their first public hearing at the Moville Area 
Community Center on September 11, 2023.  There were over 30 members of the public in attendance with 13 offering concerns 
about a potential utility-scale solar proposal. The Zoning Commission met September 25, 2023, to continue the discussion and 
welcomed public input.  The purpose the public meetings is to receive comments and put together a proposal as a possible 
ordinance or amendments for solar energy systems not limited to utility-scale systems, agrisolar or agrivoltaics, and community 
solar systems, addressing the permitting process for such systems in industrial and/or agricultural areas.  Although the Board of 
Adjustment has no role formal role in the forming of a new ordinance, information and input is welcomed. Priestley suggested 
and explained a possible overlay district that would require a rezone and basically sit on top of a current zoning district and 
would allow flexibly for placement, land would be returned to original zoning after decommissioning of use.   The Zoning 
Ordinance currently includes a conservation overlay district and a floodplain district.  The Zoning Commission will meet October 
16, 2023 for a work session where the commissioners will discuss issues and work toward a preliminary ordinance or 
amendments recommendations to present to the Board of Supervisors.  The public is encouraged to attend.  

Public Comment on Matters Not on the Agenda 
Elizabeth Widman (Sergeant Bluff) addressed the Board of Adjustment offering concerns with the accuracy and 
comprehensiveness of the Zoning Commission meeting minutes for the public hearings held on September 11 and September 
25.   

Board Member Comment of Inquiry 
None  

Staff Update 
Priestley stated the information gathering and public comment will continue regarding the Utility-Scale Solar Energy process.  
The Zoning Commission will hold a public meeting works session on October 16, 2023 at 5:00 PM in the basement of the 
courthouse.  The meeting is open to the public for comments and considerations. 

Motion to Adjourn: Turner. Second: Christensen.  Carried: 4-0.  Meeting adjourned at 6:42 PM. 

4



WOODBURY COUNTY COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
620 Douglas Street – Sixth Floor, Sioux City, IA 51101

Phone: 712-279-6609 | Fax: 712-279-6530
Web: woodburycountyiowa.gov

Preliminary Report
Conditional Use Permit for the “disturbance of earthen materials, import of earthen materials, crushing aggregate materials, 
staging crushed aggregate temporarily, exporting crushed aggregate, and rectifying site.”

APPLICATION DETAILS PROPERTY DETAILS REPORT CONTENTS
Applicant(s) / 
Owner(s):

JB Holland 
Construction / 
James A. Orr

Application Type: Conditional Use 
Permit

Zoning District: General 
Commercial

Total Acres: 29.17
Current Use: Agricultural
Proposed Use: Agricultural
Pre-application 
Meeting:

January 25, 2024

Application Date: January 25, 2024
Legal Notice Date: February 20, 2024
Neighbor Notice 
Date:

February 21, 2024

Zoning 
Commission 
Review Date:

February 26, 2024

Board of 
Adjustment Public 
Hearing Date:

March 4, 2024

Parcel #: 894632300022
Township/Range: T89N R46W
Section: 32
Quarter: SE ¼ of the SW ¼
Zoning District: General 

Commercial
Floodplain 
District:

Zone X (Not in 
Floodplain)

Address: None
LOCATION

PROJECT SUMMARY

ZONING ORDINANCE CRITERIA FOR 
BOARD APPROVAL

APPLICANT’S DESCRIPTION OF THE 
PROPOSED CONDITIONAL USE

LEGAL NOTIFICATION

PROPERTY OWNER(S) NOTIFICATION

MAP

STAKEHOLDER COMMENTS

SITE PLAN

CONTOURS

PARCEL REPORT

SOIL REPORT

ZONING MAP

FLOODPLAIN

ELEVATION

APPLICATION

GRADING PERMIT APPLICATION

IOWA DNR NPDES PERMIT NO. 2

STORM WATER POLLUTION 
PREVENTION PLAN (SWPPP)

SITE PLAN EXCEPRT

5



PROJECT SUMMARY
JB Holland Construction (Applicant) and James A. Orr (Owner) have submitted a conditional use permit (CUP) 
application to use the property located on Parcel #894632300022 in T89N R46W (Concord Township), in the 
SE ¼ of the SW ¼ of Section 32, General Commercial (GC) Zoning District, as a location to support the north 
bound Highway 20 project by using the site for the “disturbance of earthen materials, import of earthen 
materials, crushing aggregate materials, staging crushed aggregate temporarily, exporting crushed aggregate, 
and rectifying the site.”  The property is located east of Sioux City and less than 700 FT from the corporate 
boundary.  The property is not located within the Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA).  The requested uses are 
acceptable for the consideration of a CUP and compatible with Sections 3.03.3 and 3.03.4 of the Zoning 
Ordinance including the association with temporary heaving construction services uses such as aggregate crush 
& screen (temporary).

ZONING COMMISSION ACTION: 
The Woodbury County Zoning Commission met on Monday, February 26, 2024 for a public meeting to conduct 
a review session for this Conditional Use Permit application. In addition to the content received within their 
meeting packet, testimony was received from Lydia Gaunitz who spoke on behalf of JB Holland Construction.  
Concerns were received from a nearby property owner, via a February 23, 2024 phone inquiry about the need 
for dust control, and concerns for noise and vibration, and reasonable hours of operation.  The Commission 
emphasized the need for communication between the Buchanan Avenue Baptist Church to mitigate the impact 
of the construction activities on active church events.  The Zoning Commission voted 4-0 to recommend 
approval of this conditional use permit with the condition to include clear hours of operation and a line of 
communication for any possible interference with church events and to include dust control mitigation 
measures.

POSSIBLE MOTION: 
Motion to approve the conditional use permit application with the condition to include clear hours of operation 
and a line of communication for any possible interference with church events and to include dust control 
mitigation measures.  Staff also recommends conditions to comply with all federal, state, and local laws and 
requirements.  

6



ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION 

7



ZONING COMMISSION DRAFT MINUTES – 2/26/24 

8



9



ZONING ORDINANCE CRITERIA FOR BOARD APPROVAL

Conditional Use Permits are determined by a review of the following criteria by the Zoning Commission (ZC) and 
Board of Adjustment (BOA).  The ZC is tasked to make a recommendation to the BOA who consider the application 
following a public hearing before the Board.

APPLICANT’S DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSED CONDITIONAL USE

Topsoils will be stripped on approximately 8 acres of the 29 acre parcel. Topsil will be stockpiles to later be replaced 
on all disturbed areas. Crushing aggregate/old Hwy 20 West bound lanes and all materials will be used for the 
grading of the new West bound Hwy 20 lanes. Equipment used for construction of Hwy 20 will be staged on site. 
All environmental statutes per state and county will be observed throughout. Earthen materials from the grading of 
Hwy 20 will be imported to parcel and will be graded for agricultural practices.  All temporary crushing activities 
will cease and be removed and all land will be restored to its' original state.

10



11



12



13



14



CRITERIA 1: 

The conditional use requested is authorized as a conditional use in the zoning district within which the property is 
located and that any specific conditions or standards described as part of that authorization have been or will be 
satisfied (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

Applicant Response: 

The parcel requested falls in the GC zoning. GC zoning states that any temporary aggregate crushing falls under 
the need for a Condition Use Permit.  JB Holland will be grading/revamping the West bound lanes of Highway 20.
This parcel in question will fall in close proximity to the reconstruction of West Bound lanes on Hwy 20. The current
Hwy 20 roadway in the DOT project is going to be removed, crushed, stockpiled and stored while the grading part 
commences. After the grading of the roadway is complete, the crushed aggregate (old Hwy 20 road surface) will be 
reused as the sub-base (rock that is a bedding for the concrete to be laid on top of) for the new West bound Hwy 20 
DOT project.  This parcel JB Holland is proposing for the Condition Use Permit is the proposed work space for the
temporary crushing systems to be set up where all crushed aggregate produced for the crushing will be stockpiled 
to be re-used as the base for the new Hwy 20 Project after the dirt grading of Hwy 20 has been established. The 
extra dirt accumulated during the grading of Hwy 20 West bound lanes will be lain out on this parcel per the map 
attached and then all earthen material will be de-compacted and covered with the topsoil of said parcel. JB Holland 
feels the construction activity taking place fall under the GC zoning ordinance because the crushing of aggregate 
will be temporary and fully removed when the DOT Hwy 20 West bound lanes are completed. After crushing 
equipment is removed, the parcel will be reverted back to its' original state to be used as crop land.

Staff Analysis: 

The requested uses are acceptable for the consideration of a CUP and compatible with Sections 3.03.3 and 3.03.4 
of the Zoning Ordinance including the association with temporary heaving construction services uses such as 
aggregate crush & screen (temporary).

CRITERIA 2: 

The proposed use and development will be in harmony with the general purpose and intent of this ordinance and 
the goals, objectives and standards of the general plan (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

Applicant Response: 

All construction activities will cease with the completion of Hwy 20 West bound regrading and lane restoration. All 
environmental controls from state and county ordinances will be respected throughout the project. Saving the 
agricultural land is at the upmost importance to Woodbury County and JB Holland and heavy construction will be
in lieu of temporary aggregate crushing portion of this permit. All materials and heavy equipment used for the
temporary crushing will be removed from said parcel and the land will be restored in such manner to continue 
agricultural practices.

Staff Analysis: 

This temporary project offers support to the completion of the IDOT Hwy 20 project.  

CRITERIA 3: 

The proposed use and development will not have a substantial or undue adverse effect upon adjacent property, the 
character of the neighborhood, traffic conditions, parking, utility facilities, and other factors affecting the public 
health, safety and general welfare (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

Applicant Response: 

The proposed constructions will not impede on any current waterways, outlets, or field drainage systems. The parcel 
896432300022 is now partially agricultural row crop with a slope running the length of the field. The planned 
import of earthen materials will widen the agricultural portion making a smoother transition to the lower drainage 
area that will not be disturbed. The traffic for the west bound lanes of Hwy 20 will be closed down when operations
begin on this parcel and no normal traffic patterns will be disrupted. All access to Buchanan Ave N will be kept 

15



open and the only construction traffic that will impede on Buchanan N will be that of the importing of equipment
for the temporary crushing equipment. All construction equipment will yield to traffic utilizing Buchanan Ave N. 
Attached in the maps portion of the criteria is the DOT Hwy 20 plans and the layout for traffic routes for the West 
Bound lanes and Buchanan N. No city or county ROW will be impeded on or disturbed during the temporary
activities.

Staff Analysis: 

As with the complete Hwy 20 project, this proposal would have a temporary impact on the neighborhood during 
the concrete phase of the project.  There does not appear to be any significate impact to parking, or other factors 
impacting public health.  

CRITERIA 4: 

The proposed use and development will be located, designed, constructed and operated in such a manner that it will 
be compatible with the immediate neighborhood and will not interfere with the orderly use, development and 
improvement of surrounding property (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

Applicant Response: 

The operations on parcel 894632300022 will not impede on neighboring areas. The parcel now has a small row 
crop section with a slope running N/S in the middle of the property with a lower lying drainage area. Importing of 
materials will allow for a wider area for row crops and the slope will be reshaped to be more pleasing to the eye as
well as better drainage to the lower lying sections of the parcel. The closing of West bound lanes will ensure that 
no temporary construction will effect the normal flows of traffic or neighboring areas.

Staff Analysis: 

The site plan appears to be located, designed, and presented in a manner that will have minimal impact to the area 
during the time of use.  

CRITERIA 5: 

Essential public facilities and services will adequately serve the proposed use or development (Woodbury County 
Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

Applicant Response: 

No equipment or construction activities will impede on the normal flow of public facilities. This borrow will be
utilized for the placement of excess materials needed to re-grade the West bound lanes of Hwy 20 along with the 
crushing of the aggregate for re-use as the sub-base for the new Hwy 20 West bound lanes. The placement of the 
borrow will ensure timely completion of the Hwy 20 West bound lanes and allow JB Holland to not impede on 
normal traffic flows throughout the grading of Westbound Hwy 20.

Staff Analysis: 

Not applicable to the proposed use.  

CRITERIA 6: 

The proposed use or development will not result in unnecessary adverse effects upon any significant natural, scenic 
or historic features of the subject property or adjacent properties (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-
9).

Applicant Response: 

The parcel now has highly eroded soils according to the USDA soil survey. Regrading of the higher altitude of the
parcel and regrading the severely eroded slope running legthwise through the parcel will allow for better drainage, 
less erosion, and a more formal layout for agricultural row crops. An Archaeological Survey will be conducted prior 
to commencement of grading on this parcel to ensure no historical artifacts are found or disturbed. The house on 
this parcel that lies on the SE corner will have a better look-out to the NW as the field will be flatter and look more 

16



appealing.

Staff Analysis:

The applicant must perform that temporary work in a manner that does not adversely impact the property or the 
adjacent properties.  

OTHER CONSIDERATION 1:

The proposed use or development, at the particular location is necessary or desirable to provide a service or facility 
that is in the public interest or will contribute to the general welfare of the neighborhood or community (Woodbury 
County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

Staff Analysis:

As noted, this application is being requested to support the Hwy 20 project.  This can be construed as a service in 
the public interest to complete improvements to local transportation.  

OTHER CONSIDERATION 2:

All possible efforts, including building and site design, landscaping and screening have been undertaken to 
minimize any adverse effects of the proposed use or development (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-
9).

Staff Analysis:

Steps should be taken to return the property to an acceptable state.  

LEGAL NOTIFICATION
Published in the Sioux City Journal’s Legal Section on February 20, 2024

PROPERTY OWNER(S) NOTIFICATION MAP

Total Property Owners within 500 FT 
via Certified Abstractor’s Listing:

12

Notification Letter Date: February 21, 2024

Review Board Zoning Commission

Public Meeting for Review: February 26, 2024

Public Hearing Board: Board of Adjustment

Public Hearing Date: March 4, 2024

Phone Inquiries: 2

Written Inquiries: 0

The names of the property owners are listed below.  

When more comments are received after the printing of this packet, they will be 
provided at the meeting.

17



Phone Inquiries / Comments 

2/23/24 

David McWilliams 
1563 Buchanan Avenue 
Sioux City, IA 51106 

RE: Proposed Conditional Use Permit on Parcel #894632300022 

Offered concerns about: 
- Dust control  
- Noise / Vibra�on
- Reasonable Hours of Opera�on

2/23/24 

Attorney David Briese  
Representing a client 

RE: Proposed Conditional Use Permit on Parcel #894632300022 

Offered concerns about: 
- Project footprint / loca�on of site plan

Property Owner(s) Mailing Address Comments 
Kurt D. Sypersma & 
Sally O'Hern-Sypersma 
Revocable Trust

1610 Glen Ellen 
Rd. 

Sioux City IA 51106 No comments. 

Cornerstone Faith Center 1603 Glen Ellen 
Rd.

Sioux City IA 51106 No comments. 

Pamela J. Zellmer, Deed 
Holder

1574 Benton 
Ave.

Sioux City IA 51106 No comments. 

Aaron M. Hoelker & 
Anna R. Zellmer, 
Contract Holder

1574 Benton 
Ave. 

Sioux City IA 51106 No comments. 

Steven M. & Pamela J. 
Hoelker JT Revocable 
Trust

1424 220th St. Sergeant 
Bluff 

IA 51054 No comments. 

David L. & Gail B. 
McWilliams 

1563 Buchanan 
Ave. 

Sioux City IA 51106 Phone inquiry on 2/23/24.  David offered concerns 
about: Dust control; Noise / Vibration; Reasonable 
Hours of Operation

Andrew T. (Ted) Orr 2222 Heights 
Ave.

Sioux City IA 51104 No comments. 

Buchanan Avenue 
Baptist Church of Sioux 
City, Iowa

1567 Buchanan 
Avenue 

Sioux City IA 51106 No comments. 

Kovarna Properties LLC 1555 Hwy 20 / 
PO Box 5320

Sioux City IA 51106 
/51102

No comments. 

Jennie Marie Thomas-
Orr

330 Summit 
Point Ct.

Hastings M
N

55033 No comments. 

James Allen Orr 16704 SW 
Meinecke Rd.

Sherwood O
R

97140 No comments. 

Orr Living Trust (Jay & 
Michelle Orr)

PO Box 87 Spring 
Hill

K
S

66083 No comments. 

STAKEHOLDER COMMENTS 
911 COMMUNICATIONS CENTER: No comments.
BNSF RAILWAY: No comments.

18



CITY OF SIOUX CITY: No comments.
FIBERCOMM: No comments.
GOLDEN HILLS RESOURCE CONSERVATION & DEVELOMENT: No comments.
IOWA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES (IDNR): No comments.
IOWA DEPARTMENET OF PUBLIC SAFETY: No comments:
IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (IDOT): No comments.
IOWA FARM BUREAU: No comments.
LOESS HILLS NATIONAL SCENIC BYWAY: No comments.
LOESS HILLS PROGRAM: No comments.
LONGLINES: No comments.
LUMEN: No comments.
MAGELLAN PIPELINE: No comments.
MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Electrical Division): I have reviewed the following conditional use 

permit for MEC electric and we have no 
conflicts. – Casey Meinen, 2/5/24.

MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Gas Division): No comments.
NATURE CONSERVANCY IN IOWA: No comments.
NATURAL RESOURCES CONSERVATION SERVICES (NRCS): No comments.
NORTHERN NATURAL GAS: No comments.
NORTHWEST IOWA POWER COOPERATIVE (NIPCO): Have reviewed this zoning request.  NIPCO has 

no issues with this request. – Jeff Zettel, 2/7/24.
NUSTAR PIPELINE: No comments.
SIOUXLAND CHAMBER: No comments.
SIOUXLAND DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT: No comments.
UNION PACIFIC RAILROAD: No comments.
WIATEL: No comments.
WINNEBAGO TRIBE: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY ASSESSOR: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY CONSERVATION: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY ENGINEER: I see no issues with permitting this area as a 

borrow/staging area for the Hwy 20 project as 
proposed.  It is ideally located for the project 
work.  Buchanan Avenue will be reconstructed at 
the south end, so any damage to the pavement 
will be addressed as part of the Highway 20 
project.   Safe access from the parcel onto 
Buchanan Avenue is available.   I recommend 
approval of the conditional use permit. – Mark 
Nahra, 2/5/24.

WOODBURY COUNTY RECORDER: No comments, thank you. – Diane Swoboda 
Peterson, 2/2/24.

WOODBURY COUNTY RURAL ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE 
(REC):

No comments. 

WOODBURY COUNTY SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION 
DISTRICT:

The WCSWCD has no comments regarding this 
proposal. – Neil Stockfleth, 2/5/24.

WOODBURY COUNTY TREASURER: No comments.

19



SITE PLAN

20



CONTOURS

21



PARCEL REPORT

22



SOIL REPORT

23



24



25



26



ZONING MAP

27



FLOODPLAIN
The property is not located within the Special Flood Hazard Area.

ELEVATION

28



APPLICATION

29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



GRADING PERMIT APPLICATION

38



IOWA DNR NPDES PERMIT NO. 2

39



40



41



STORM WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN (SWPPP)

42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



'• I,.,~lr;,menl II: 2022-05190 
04//25/2022 01:19:00 PM Total Pages: 19 
ORDNC ORDINANCE 
Recording Fee: $ 0.00 
Patrick F. Gill, Auditor/Recorder, Woodbury County Iowa 

~111 wr.i m ~k~~ 111.fJtrPV~-.m~~ 11111,/ 
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 

ORDINANCE NO.~ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE TEXT OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE TO 
REPEAL AND REPLACE SECTION 5.03 ENTITLED "FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT ORDINANCE" 
WITH A REVISED "FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT ORDINANCE" THAT MEETS THE MINIMUM 
REQUIREMENTS FOR ACCEPTANCE IN THE NATIONAL FLOOD INSURANCE PROGRAM FOR 
COUNTIES WHICH HAVE A DETAILED FLOOD INSURANCE STUDY (FIS) ISSUED BY THE FEDERAL 
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY (FEMA). 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF WOODBURY 
COUNTY, IOWA THAT THE BELOW ZONING ORDINANCE LANGAUGE AMENDMENT BE MADE: 

Amendment #1 -

Beginning on page 56: remove Section 5.03: Floodplain Management Ordinance and replace with the 
following: 

Section 5.03: Floodplain Management Ordinance 

1. Definitions 

Unless specifically defined below, words or phrases used in this Ordinance shall be interpreted so as to 
give them the meaning they have in common usage and to give this Ordinance its most reasonable 
application. 

A. Appurtenant Structure - A structure which is on the same parcel of the property as the principal 
structure to be insured and the use of which is incidental to the use of the principal structure. 

B. Base Flood - The flood having one (1) percent chance of being equaled or exceeded in any given 
year. (Also commonly referred to as the "1 DO-year flood"). 

C. Base Flood Elevation (BFE) - The elevation floodwaters would reach at a particular site during 
the occurrence of a base fiood event. 

D. Basement - Any enclosed area of a building which has its fioor or lowest level below ground level 
(subgrade) on all sides. Also see "lowest fioor." 

E. Development - Any man-made change to improved or unimproved real estate, including but not 
limited to buildings or other structures, mining, dredging, filling, grading, paving, excavation, drilling 
operations or storage of equipment or materials. "Development" does not include "minor projects" 
or "routine maintenance of existing buildings and facilities" as defined in this section. It also does 
not include gardening, plowing, and similar practices that do not involve filling or grading. 

F. Enclosed Area Below Lowest Floor - The fioor of the lowest enclosed area in a building when 
all the following criteria are met: 

(1) The enclosed area is designed to fiood to equalize hydrostatic pressure during flood events 
with walls or openings that satisfy the provisions of 5.03-7 B(4)(a) of this Ordinance, and 

(2) The enclosed area is unfinished (not carpeted, drywalled, etc.) and used solely for low 
damage potential uses such as building access, parking or storage, and 

(3) Machinery and service facilities (e.g., hot water heater, furnace, electrical service) 
contained in the enclosed area are located at least one (1) foot above the base fiood 
elevation, and 

(4) The enclosed area is not a "basement" as defined in this section. 

75



G. Existing Construction - Any structure for which the "start of construction" commenced before the 
effective date of the first floodplain management regulations adopted by the community. 

H. Existing Factory-Built Home Park Or Subdivision - A factory-built home park or subdivision for 
which the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the factory-built homes are to be 
affixed (including at a minimum, the installation of utilities, the construction of streets, and either 
final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads) is completed before the effective date of the first 
floodplain management regulations adopted by the community. 

I. Expansion Of Existing Factory-Built Home Park Or SUBDIVISION - The preparation of 
additional sites by the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the factory-built homes 
are to be affixed (including at a minimum, the installation of utilities, the construction of streets, and 
either final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads). 

J. Factory-Built Home - Any structure, designed for residential use which is wholly or in substantial 
part, made, fabricated, formed or assembled in manufacturing facilities for installation or assembly 
and installation, on a building site. For the purpose of this Ordinance factory-built homes include 
mobile homes, manufactured homes, and modular homes; and also include "recreational vehicles" 
which are placed on a site for greater than 1 BO consecutive days and not fully licensed for and 
ready for highway use. 

K. Factory-Built Home Park Or Subdivision - A parcel or contiguous parcels of land divided into 
two or more factory-built home lots for sale or lease. 

L. Five Hundred (500) Year Flood - A flood, the magnitude of which has a two-tenths (0.2) percent 
chance of being equaled or exceeded in any given year or which, on average, will be equaled or 
exceeded at least once every five hundred (500) years. 

M. Flood - A general and temporary condition of partial or complete inundation of normally dry land 
areas resulting from the overflow of streams or rivers or from the unusual and rapid runoff of surface 
waters from any source. 

N. Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) - The official map prepared as part of (but published separately 
from) the Flood Insurance Study which delineates both the flood hazard areas and the risk premium 
zones applicable to the community. 

0. Flood Insurance Study (FIS) - A report published by FEMA for a community issued along with 
the community's Flood Insurance Rate Map(s). The study contains such background data as the 
base flood discharge and water surface elevations that were used to prepare the FIRM. 

P. Floodplain -Any land area susceptible to being inundated by water as a result of a flood. 

Q. Floodplain Management -An overall program of corrective and preventive measures for reducing 
flood damages and promoting the wise use of floodplains, including but not limited to emergency 
preparedness plans, flood control works, floodproofing and floodplain management regulations. 

R. Floodproofing - Any combination of structural and nonstructural additions, changes, or 
adjustments to structures, including utility and sanitary facilities, which will reduce or eliminate flood 
damage to such structures. 

S. Floodway - The channel of a river or stream and those portions of the floodplains adjoining the 
channel, which are reasonably required to carry and discharge flood waters or flood flows so that 
confinement of flood flows to the floodway area will not cumulatively increase the water surface 
elevation of the base flood by more than one (1) foot. 

T. Floodway Fringe - Those portions of the Special Flood Hazard Area outside the floodway. 

U. Highest Adjacent Grade- The highest natural elevation of the ground surface prior to construction 
next to the proposed walls of a structure 

V. Historic Structure - Any structure that is: 

76



(1) Listed individually in the National Register of Historic Places, maintained by the Department of 
Interior, or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of the Interior as meeting the requirements 
for individual listing of the National Register; 

(2) Certified or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of the Interior as contributing to the 
historical significance of a registered historic district or a district preliminarily determined by the 
Secretary to qualify as a registered historic district; 

(3) Individually listed on a state inventory of historic places in states with historic preservation 
programs which have been approved by the Secretary of the Interior; or, 

(4) Individually listed on a local inventory of historic places in communities with historic 
preservation programs that have been certified by either i) an approved state program as 
determined by the Secretary of the Interior or ii) directly by the Secretary of the Interior in states 
without approved programs. 

W. Lowest Floor - The floor of the lowest enclosed area in a building including a basement except 
when the criteria listed in the definition of Enclosed Area below Lowest Floor are met. 

X. Maximum Damage Potential Development - Hospitals and like institutions; buildings or building 
complexes containing documents, data, or instruments of great public value; buildings or building 
complexes containing materials dangerous to the public or fuel storage facilities; power installations 
needed in emergency or other buildings or building complexes similar in nature or use. 

Y. Minor Projects - Small development activities (except for filling, grading and excavating) valued 
at less than $500. 

Z. New Construction - (new buildings, factory-built home parks) - Those structures or development 
for which the start of construction commenced on or after the effective date of the first floodplain 
management regulations adopted by the community. 

AA.New Factory-Built Home Park Or Subdivision -A factory-built home park or subdivision for 
which the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the factory-built homes are to be 
affixed (including at a minimum, the installation of utilities, the construction of streets, and either 
final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads) is completed on or after the effective date of the 
effective date of the first floodplain management regulations adopted by the community. 

BB.Recreational Vehicle -A vehicle which is: 

(1) Built on a single chassis; 

(2) Four hundred (400) square feet or less when measured at the largest horizontal projection; 

(3) Designed to be self-propelled or permanently towable by a light duty truck; and 

(4) Designed primarily not for use as a permanent dwelling but as a temporary living quarters for 
recreational, camping, travel, or seasonal use. 

CC.Routine Maintenance of Existing Buildings and Facilities - Repairs necessary to keep a 
structure in a safe and habitable condition that do not trigger a building permit, provided they are 
not associated with a general improvement of the structure or repair of a damaged structure. Such 
repairs include: 

(1) Normal maintenance of structures such as re-roofing, replacing roofing tiles and replacing 
siding; 

(2) Exterior and interior painting, papering, tiling, carpeting, cabinets, counter tops and similar 
finish work; 

(3) Basement sealing; 

(4) Repairing or replacing damaged or broken window panes; 

(5) Repairing plumbing systems, electrical systems, heating or air conditioning systems and 
repairing wells or septic systems. 

77

aricehi
Highlight



DD.Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA) - The land within a community subject to the "base flood". 
This land is identified on the community's Flood Insurance Rate Map as Zone A, A1-30, AE, AH, 
AO, AR, and/or A99. 

EE. Start Of Construction - Includes substantial improvement, and means the date the development 
permit was issued, provided the actual start of construction, repair, reconstruction, rehabilitation, 
addition, placement, or other improvement, was within 180 days of the permit date. The actual 
start means either the first placement or permanent construction of a structure on a site, such as 
pouring of a slab or footings, the installation of pile, the construction of columns, or any work beyond 
the stage of excavation; or the placement of a factory-built home on a foundation. Permanent 
construction does not include land preparation, such as clearing, grading and filling; nor does it 
include the installation of streets and/or walkways; nor does it include excavation for a basement, 
footings, piers, or foundations or the erection of temporary forms; nor does it include the installation 
on the property of accessory buildings such as garages or sheds not occupied as dwelling units or 
not part of the main structure. For a substantial improvement, the actual start of construction means 
the first alteration of any wall, ceiling, floor, or other structural part of the building, whether or not 
that alteration affects the external dimensions of the building. 

FF. Structure - Anything constructed or erected on the ground or attached to the ground, including, 
but not limited to, buildings, factories, sheds, cabins, factory-built homes, storage tanks, grain 
storage facilities and/or other similar uses. 

GG. Substantial Damage - Damage of any origin sustained by a structure whereby the cost of restoring 
the structure to its before damage condition would equal or exceed fifty (50) percent of the market 
value of the structure before the damage occurred. Volunteer labor and donated materials shall 
be included in the estimated cost of repair. 

HH. Substantial Improvement -Any improvement to a structure which satisfies either of the following 
criteria: 

(1) Any repair, reconstruction, or improvement of a structure, the cost of which equals or exceeds 
fifty (50) percent of the market value of the structure either (i) before the "start of construction" 
of the improvement , or (ii) if the structure has been "substantially damaged" and is being 
restored, before the damage occurred. 

(2) The term does not, however, include any project for improvement of a structure to correct 
existing violations of state or local health, sanitary, or safety code specifications which have 
been identified by the local code enforcement official and which are the minimum necessary to 
assure safe living conditions. The term also does not include any alteration of an "historic 
structure", provided the alteration will not preclude the structure's designation as an "historic 
structure". 

(3) Any addition which increases the original floor area of a building by 25 percent or more. All 
additions constructed after the effective date of the first floodplain management regulations 
adopted by the community shall be added to any proposed addition in determining whether the 
total increase in original floor space would exceed 25 percent. 

II. Variance -A grant of relief by a community from the terms of the floodplain management regulations. 

JJ. Violation - The failure of a structure or other development to be fully compliant with the 
community's floodplain management regulations. 

2. Statutory Authority, Findings of Fact and Purpose 

A. The Legislature of the State of Iowa has in Chapter 335, Code of Iowa, as amended, delegated the 
power to counties to enact zoning regulations to secure safety from flood and to promote health and 
the general welfare. 

8. Findings of Fact 

(1) The flood hazard areas of Woodbury County are subject to periodic inundation which can result in 
loss of life and property, health and safety hazards, disruption of commerce and governmental 

78



services, extraordinary public expenditures for flood protection and relief, and impairment of the tax 
base all of which adversely affect the public health, safety and general welfare of the community. 

(2) These flood losses, hazards, and related adverse effects are caused by: (i) The occupancy of flood 
hazard areas by uses vulnerable to flood damages which create hazardous conditions as a result 
of being inadequately elevated or otherwise protected from flooding and (ii) the cumulative effect 
of obstructions on the floodplain causing increases in flood heights and velocities. 

(3) This ordinance relies upon engineering methodology for analyzing flood hazards which is 
consistent with the standards established by the Department of Natural Resources. 

C. Statement of Purpose. It is the purpose of this Ordinance to protect and preserve the rights, privileges 
and property of Woodbury County and its residents and to preserve and improve the peace, safety, 
health, welfare, and comfort and convenience of its residents by minimizing those flood losses 
described in 5.03-2.8(1) of this Ordinance with provisions designed to: 

(1) Reserve sufficient floodplain area for the conveyance of flood flows so that flood heights and 
velocities will not be increased substantially. 

(2) Restrict or prohibit uses which are dangerous to health, safety or property in times of flood or which 
cause excessive increases in flood heights or velocities. 

(3) Require that uses vulnerable to floods, including public facilities which serve such uses, be 
protected against flood damage at the time of initial construction or substantial improvement. 

(4) Protect individuals from buying lands which may not be suited for intended purposes because of 
flood hazard. 

(5) Assure that eligibility is maintained for property owners in the community to purchase flood 
insurance through the National Flood Insurance Program. 

3. General Provisions 

A. Lands to Which Ordinance Apply. The provIsIons of this Ordinance shall apply to all 
lands within the jurisdiction of Woodbury County shown on the Official Floodplain Zoning Map 
as being within the boundaries of the Floodway, Floodway Fringe, General Floodplain and Shallow 
Flooding (Overlay) Districts, as established in section 5.03-5 below. 

B. Establishment of Official Floodplain Zoning Map. The Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) for 
Woodbury County and Incorporated Areas, dated March 2, 2015, which were prepared as part of 
the Flood Insurance Study for Woodbury County. is (are) hereby adopted by reference and 
declared to be the Official Floodplain Zoning Map. The Woodbury County Flood Insurance Study 
is hereby adopted by reference and is made a part of this ordinance for the purpose of administering 
floodplain management regulations. 

C. Rules for Interpretation of District Boundaries. The boundaries of the zoning district areas shall be 
determined by scaling distances on the Official Floodplain Zoning Map. When an interpretation is 
needed as to the exact location of a boundary, the Zoning Director shall make the necessary 
interpretation. The Board of Adjustment shall hear and decide appeals when it is alleged that there 
is an error in any requirement, decision, or determination made by the Zoning Director in the 
enforcement or administration of this Ordinance. 

D. Compliance. No structure or land shall hereafter be used and no structure shall be located, 
extended, converted or structurally altered without full compliance with the terms of this Ordinance 
and other applicable regulations which apply to uses within the jurisdiction of this Ordinance. 

E. Abrogation and Greater Restrictions. It is not intended by this Ordinance to repeal, abrogate or 
impair any existing easements, covenants, or deed restrictions. However, where this Ordinance 
imposes greater restrictions, the provision of this Ordinance shall prevail. All other ordinances 
inconsistent with this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of the inconsistency only. 

79

aricehi
Highlight



F. Interpretation. In their interpretation and application, the provisions of this Ordinance shall be held 
to be minimum requirements and shall be liberally construed in favor of the governing body and 
shall not be deemed a limitation or repeal of any other powers granted by State statutes. 

G. Warning and Disclaimer of Liability. The standards required by this Ordinance are considered 
reasonable for regulatory purposes. This Ordinance does not imply that areas outside the 
designated Floodplain (Overlay) District areas will be free from flooding or flood damages. This 
Ordinance shall not create liability on the part of Woodbury County or any officer or employee 
thereof for any flood damages that result from reliance on this Ordinance or any administrative 
decision lawfully made there under. 

H. Severability. If any section, clause, provision or portion of this Ordinance is adjudged 
unconstitutional or invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this Ordinance shall 
not be affected thereby. 

4. Administration 

A. Appointment. Duties and Responsibilities of Local Official 

(1) The Zoning Director is hereby appointed to implement and administer the provisions of this 
Ordinance and will herein be referred to as the Administrator. 

(2) Duties and responsibilities of the Administrator shall include, but not necessarily be limited to the 
following: 

(a) Review all floodplain development permit applications to assure that the provisions of this 
Ordinance will be satisfied. 

(b) Review floodplain development applications to assure that all necessary permits have been 
obtained from federal, state and local governmental agencies including approval when required 
from the Department of Natural Resources for floodplain construction. 

(c) Record and maintain a record of (i) the elevation (in relation to North American Vertical Datum 
1988 of the lowest floor (including basement) of all new or substantially improved structures or 
(ii) the elevation to which new or substantially improved structures have been flood proofed. 

(d) Notify adjacent communities/counties and the Department of Natural Resources prior to any 
proposed alteration or relocation of a watercourse and submit evidence of such notifications to 
the Federal Emergency Management Agency. 

(e) Keep a record of all permits, appeals and such other transactions and correspondence 
pertaining to the administration of this Ordinance. 

(f) Submit to the Federal Insurance Administrator an annual report concerning the community's 
participation, utilizing the annual report form supplied by the Federal Insurance Administrator. 

(g) Notify the Federal Insurance Administration of any annexations or modifications to the 
community's boundaries. 

(h) Review subdivision proposals to ensure such proposals are consistent with the purpose of this 
ordinance and advise the Zoning Commission of potential conflict. 

(i) Maintain the accuracy of the community's Flood Insurance Rate Maps when; 

(i) Development placed within the Floodway (Overlay) District results in any of the following: 

(1) An increase in the Base Flood Elevations, or 

(2) Alteration to the floodway boundary 

(ii) Development placed in Zones A, AE, AH, and A1-30 that does not include a designated 

floodway that will cause a rise of more than one foot in the base elevation; or 

(iii) Development relocates or alters the channel. 

80



Within 6 months of the completion of the development, the applicant shall submit to FEMA all 
scientific and technical data necessary for a Letter of Map Revision. 

U) Perform site inspections to ensure compliance with the standards of this Ordinance. 

(k) Forward all requests for Variances to .the Board of Adjustment for consideration. Ensure all 
requests include the information ordinarily submitted with applications as well as any additional 
information deemed necessary to the Board of Adjustment. 

B. Floodplain Development Permit 

(1) Permit Required - A Floodplain Development Permit issued by the Administrator shall be secured 
prior to any floodplain development (any man-made change to improved and unimproved real 
estate, including but not limited to buildings or other structures, mining, filling, grading, paving, 
storage of materials and equipment, excavation or drilling operations), including the placement of 
factory-built homes .. 

(2) Application for Permit -Application shall be made on forms furnished by the Administrator and shall 
include the following: 

(a) Description of the work to be covered by the permit for which application is to be made. 

(b) Description of the land on which the proposed work is to be done (i.e., lot, block, track, street 
address or similar description) that will readily identify and locate the work to be done. 

(c) Location and dimensions of all structures and additions 

(d) Indication of the use or occupancy for which the proposed work is intended. 

(e) Elevation of the base flood. 

(f) Elevation (in relation to North American Vertical Datum 1988 of the lowest floor (including 
basement) of structures or of the level to which a structure is to be floodproofed. 

(g) For structures being improved or rebuilt, the estimated cost of improvements and market value 
of the structure prior to the improvements. 

(h) Such other information as the Administrator deems reasonably necessary (e.g., drawings or a 
site plan) for the purpose of this Ordinance. 

(3) Action on Permit Application - The Administrator shall, within a reasonable time, make a 
determination as to whether the proposed floodplain development meets the applicable standards 
of this Ordinance and shall approve or disapprove the application. For disapprovals, the applicant 
shall be informed, in writing, of the specific reasons therefore. The Administrator shall not issue 
permits for variances except as directed by the County Board of Adjustment. 

(4) Construction and Use to be as Provided in Application and Plans- Floodplain Development Permits 
based on the basis of approved plans and applications authorize only the use, arrangement, and 
construction set forth in such approved plans and applications and no other use, arrangement or 
construction. Any use, arrangement, or construction at variance with that authorized shall be 
deemed a violation of this Ordinance. The applicant shall be required to submit certification by a 
professional engineer or land surveyor, as appropriate, registered in the State of Iowa, that the 
finished fill, structure floor elevations, floodproofing, or other flood protection measures were 
accomplished in compliance with the provisions of this Ordinance, prior to the use or occupancy of 
any structure. 

5. Establishment of Zoning (Overlay) Districts. The floodplain areas within the jurisdiction of this 
ordinance are hereby divided into the following districts: 

A. Floodway (Overlay) District (FW) - those areas identified as Floodway on the Official Flood Plain 
Zoning Map; 

B. Floodway Fringe (Overlay) District (FF) - those areas identified as Zone AE on the Official Flood 
Plain Zoning Map but excluding those areas identified as Floodway; 

81



C. General Floodplain (Overlay) District (GF) - those areas identified as Zone A on the Official Flood 
Plain Zoning Map, and; 

D. Shallow Flooding (Overlay) District (SF) - those areas identified as Zone AO or AH on the Official 
Flood Plain Zoning Map. 

The boundaries shall be as shown on the Official Floodplain Zoning Map. Within these districts, all uses 
not allowed as Permitted Uses are prohibited unless a variance to the terms of this ordinance is granted 
after due consideration by the Board of Adjustment. 

6. Floodway (Overlay) District (FW) 

A. Permitted Uses 

All development within the Floodway District shall be permitted to the extent that they are not prohibited 
by any other ordinance (or underlying zoning district) and provided they meet applicable performance 
standards of the Floodway District. 

B. Performance Standards 

All Floodway District uses allowed as a Permitted Use shall meet the following standards. 

(1) No development shall be permitted in the Floodway District that would result in any increase in the 
base flood elevation. Consideration of the effects of any development on flood levels shall be 
based upon the assumption that an equal degree of development would be allowed for similarly 
situated lands. 

(2) All development within the Floodway District shall: 

(a) Be consistent with the need to minimize flood damage. 

(b) Use construction methods and practices that will minimize flood damage. 

(c) Use construction materials and utility equipment that are resistant to flood damage. 

(3) No development shall affect the capacity or conveyance of the channel or floodway of any tributary 
to the main stream, drainage ditch or any other drainage facility or system. 

(4) Structures, buildings, recreational vehicles, and sanitary and utility systems, if permitted, shall meet 
the applicable performance standards of the Floodway Fringe District and shall be constructed or 
aligned to present the minimum possible resistance to flood flows. 

(5) Structures, if permitted, shall have low flood damage potential and shall not be for human 
habitation. 

(6) Storage of materials or equipment that are buoyant, flammable, explosive or injurious to human, 
animal or plant life is prohibited, Storage of other material may be allowed if readily removable 
from the Floodway District within the time available after flood warning. 

(7) Watercourse alterations or relocations (channel changes and modifications) must be designed to 
maintain the flood carrying capacity within the altered or relocated portion. In addition, such 
alterations or relocations must be approved by the Department of Natural Resources. 

(8) Any fill allowed in the floodway must be shown to have some beneficial purpose and shall be limited 
to the minimum amount necessary. 

(9) Pipeline river or stream crossings shall be buried in the streambed and banks or otherwise 
sufficiently protected to prevent rupture due to channel degradation and meandering or due to the 
action of flood flows. 

7. Floodway Fringe (Overlay) District (FF) 

A. Permitted Uses 

82



All development within the Floodway Fringe District shall be permitted to the extent that they are not 
prohibited by any other ordinance (or underlying zoning district) and provided they meet applicable 
performance standards of the Floodway Fringe District. 

B. Performance Standards 

All development must be consistent with the need to minimize flood damage and meet the following 
applicable performance standards. Until a regulatory floodway is designated, no development may 
increase the Base Flood Elevation more than one (1) foot. The applicant will be responsible for 
providing the Department of Natural Resources with sufficient technical information to make such 
determination. 

(1) All development shall: 

(a) Be designed and adequately anchored to prevent flotation, collapse or lateral movement. 

(b) Use construction methods and practices that will minimize flood damage. 

(c) Use construction materials and utility equipment that are resistant to flood damage. 

(2) Residential structures - All new or substantially improved residential structures shall have the 
lowest floor, including basement, elevated a minimum of one (1) foot above the base flood 
elevation. Construction shall be upon compacted fill which shall, at all points, be no lower than 1.0 
ft. above the base flood elevation and extend at such elevation at least 18 feet beyond the limits of 
any structure erected thereon. Alternate methods of elevating (such as piers or extended 
foundations) may be allowed where existing topography, street grades, or other factors preclude 
elevating by fill. In such cases, the methods used must be adequate to support the structure as 
well as withstand the various forces and hazards associated with flooding. 

All new residential structures located in areas that would become isolated due to flooding of 
surrounding ground shall be provided with a means of access that will be passable by wheeled 
vehicles during the base flood. However, this criterion shall not apply where the Administrator 
determines there is sufficient flood warning time for the protection of life and property. When 
estimating flood warning time, consideration shall be given to the criteria listed in 567-75.2(3), Iowa 
Administrative Code. 

(3) Non-residential structures - All new or substantially improved non-residential structures shall have 
the lowest floor (including basement) elevated a minimum of one (1) foot above the base flood 
elevation, or together with attendant utility and sanitary systems, be flood proofed to such a level. 
When floodproofing is utilized, a professional engineer registered in the State of Iowa shall certify 
that the floodproofing methods used are adequate to withstand the flood depths, pressures, 
velocities, impact and uplift forces and other factors associated with the base flood; and that the 
structure, below the base flood elevation is watertight with walls substantially impermeable to the 
passage of water. A record of the certification indicating the specific elevation (in relation to North 
American Vertical Datum 1988 to which any structures are floodproofed shall be maintained by the 
Administrator. 

(4) All new and substantially improved structures: 

(a) Fully enclosed areas below the "lowest floor" (not including basements) that are subject to 
flooding shall be designed to automatically equalize hydrostatic flood forces on exterior walls 
by allowing for the entry and exit of floodwaters. Designs for meeting this requirement must 
either be certified by a registered professional engineer or meet or exceed the following 
minimum criteria: 

(i) A minimum of two (2) openings having a total net area of not less than one square inch 
for every square foot of enclosed area subject to flooding shall be provided. 

(ii) The bottom of all openings shall be no higher than one foot above grade. 

(iii) Openings may be equipped with screens, louvers, valves, or other coverings or devices 
provided they permit the automatic entry and exit of floodwaters. 

83



Such areas shall be used solely for parking of vehicles, building access and low damage 
potential storage. 

(b) New and substantially improved structures must be designed (or modified) and adequately 
anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, or lateral movement of the structure resulting from 
hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads, including the effects of buoyancy. 

(c) New and substantially improved structures shall be constructed with electric meter, electrical 
service panel box, hot water heater, heating, air conditioning, ventilation equipment (including 
ductwork), and other similar machinery and equipment elevated (or in the case on non
residential structures, optionally floodproofed to) a minimum of one (1) foot above the base 
flood elevation. 

(d) New and substantially improved structures shall be constructed with plumbing, gas lines, 
water/gas meters and other similar service utilities either elevated (or in the case of non
residential structures, optionally floodproofed to) a minimum of one (1) foot above the base 
flood elevation or designed to be watertight and withstand inundation to such a level. 

(5) Factory-built homes: 

(a) All new and substantially improved factory-built homes, including those placed in existing 
factory-built home parks or subdivisions, shall be elevated on a permanent foundation such 
that the lowest floor of the structure is a minimum of one (1) foot above the base flood elevation. 

(b) All new and substantially improved factory-built homes, including those placed in existing 
factory-built home parks or subdivisions, shall be anchored to resist flotation, collapse, or lateral 
movement. Anchorage systems may include, but are not limited to, use of over-the-top or frame 
ties to ground anchors as required by the State Building Code. 

(6) Utility and Sanitary Systems: 

(a) On-site wastewater disposal and water supply systems shall be located or designed to avoid 
impairment to the system or contamination from the system during flooding. 

(b) All new and replacement sanitary sewage systems shall be designed to minimize or eliminate 
infiltration of flood waters into the system as well as the discharge of effluent into flood waters. 
Wastewater treatment facilities (other than on-site systems) shall be provided with a level of 
flood protection equal to or greater than one (1) foot above the base flood elevation. 

(c) New or replacement water supply systems shall be designed to minimize or eliminate infiltration 
of flood waters into the system. Water supply treatment facilities (other than on-site systems) 
shall be provided with a level of protection equal to or greater than one (1) foot above the base 
flood elevation. 

(d) Utilities such as gas or electrical systems shall be located and constructed to minimize or 
eliminate flood damage to the system and the risk associated with such flood damaged or 
impaired systems. 

(7) Storage of materials and equipment that are flammable, explosive or injurious to human, animal or 
plant life is prohibited unless elevated a minimum of one (1) foot above the base flood elevation. 
other material and equipment must either be similarly elevated or (i) not be subject to major flood 
damage and be anchored to prevent movement due to flood waters or (ii) be readily removable 
from the area within the time available after flood warning. 

(8) Flood control structural works such as levees, flood walls, etc. shall provide, at a minimum, 
protection from the base flood with a minimum of 3 ft. of design freeboard and shall provide for 
adequate interior drainage. In addition, the Department of Natural Resources shall approve 
structural flood control works. 

(9) Watercourse alterations or relocations must be designed to maintain the flood carrying capacity 
within the altered or relocated portion. In addition, such alterations or relocations must be approved 
by the Department of Natural Resources. 

84



(1 D) Subdivisions (including factory-built home parks and subdivisions) shall be consistent with the need 
to minimize flood damages and shall have adequate drainage provided to reduce exposure to flood 
damage. Development associated with subdivision proposals (including the installation of public 
utilities) shall meet the applicable performance standards of this Ordinance. Subdivision proposals 
intended for residential use shall provide all lots with a means of access which will be passable by 
wheeled vehicles during the base flood. Proposals for subdivisions greater than five (5) acres or 
fifty (50) lots (whichever is less) shall include base flood elevation data for those areas located 
within the Floodway Fringe (Overlay) District. 

(11) Accessory Structures to Residential Uses 

(a) 1) Detached garages, sheds, and similar structures that are incidental to a residential use are 
exempt from the base flood elevation requirements where the following criteria are satisfied: 

(i) The structure shall be designed to have low flood damage potential. Its size shall not 
exceed 600 sq. ft. in size. Those portions of the structure located less than 1 foot above 
the base flood elevation must be constructed of flood-resistant materials. 

(ii) The structure shall be used solely for low flood damage potential purposes such as 
vehicle parking and limited storage. The structure shall not be used for human habitation. 

(iii) The structure shall be constructed and placed on the building site so as to offer minimum 
resistance to the flow of floodwaters. 

(iv) The structure shall be firmly anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, and lateral movement 
which may result in damage to other structures. 

(v) e. The structure's service facilities such as electrical and heating equipment shall be 
elevated or flood proofed to at least one foot above the base flood elevation. 

(vi) f. The structure's walls shall include openings that satisfy the provisions of 5.03-7 B (4)(a) 
of this Ordinance. 

b. 2) Exemption from the base flood elevation requirements for such a structure may result in 
increased premium rates for flood insurance coverage of the structure and its contents. 

(12) Recreational Vehicles 

(a) Recreational vehicles are exempt from the requirements of subsection 5.03-7 B (5) of this 
Ordinance regarding anchoring and elevation of factory-built homes when the following criteria 
are satisfied. 

(i) The recreational vehicle shall be located on the site for less than 1 BO consecutive days, 
and, 

(ii) The recreational vehicle must be fully licensed and ready for highway use. A recreational 
vehicle is ready for highway use if it is on its wheels or jacking system and is attached to 
the site only by quick disconnect type utilities and security devices and has no 
permanently attached additions. 

(b) Recreational vehicles that are located on the site for more than 180 consecutive days or are 
not ready for highway use must satisfy requirements of subsection 5.03-7 B (5) of this 
Ordinance regarding anchoring and elevation of factory-built homes. 

(13) Pipeline river and stream crossings shall be buried in the streambed and banks, or otherwise 
sufficiently protected to prevent rupture due to channel degradation and meandering. 

(14) Maximum Damage Potential Development -All new or substantially improved maximum damage 
potential development shall have the lowest floor (including basement) elevated a minimum of one 
(1) foot above the elevation of the 500-year flood, or together with attendant utility and sanitary 
systems, be floodproofed to such a level. When floodproofing is utilized, a professional engineer 
registered in the State of Iowa shall certify that the floodproofing methods used are adequate to 
withstand the flood depths, pressures, velocities, impact and uplift forces and other factors 
associated with the 0.2% annual chance flood; and that the structure, below the 0.2% annual 

85



chance flood elevation is watertight with walls substantially impermeable to the passage of water. 
A record of the certification indicating the specific elevation (in relation to North American Vertical 
Datum 1988 to which any structures are floodproofed shall be maintained by the Administrator. 
Where 0.2% chance flood elevation data has not been provided in the Flood Insurance Study, the 
Iowa Department of Natural Resources shall be contacted to compute such data. The applicant will 
be responsible for providing the Department of Natural Resources with sufficient technical 
information to make such determinations. 

8. General Floodplain (Overlay) District (GF) 

A. Permitted Uses 

(1) All development within the General Floodplain District shall be permitted to the extent that they are 
not prohibited by any other ordinance (or underlying zoning district) and provided they meet the 
applicable performance standards of the General Floodplain District. . 

(2) Any development which involves placement of structures, factory-built homes, fill or other 
obstructions, storage of materials or equipment, excavation or alteration of a watercourse shall be 
reviewed by the Department of Natural Resources to determine (i) whether the land involved is either 
wholly or partly within the floodway or floodway fringe and (ii) the base flood elevation. The applicant 
shall be responsible for providing the Department of Natural Resources with sufficient technical 
information to make the determination. 

(3) Review by the Iowa Department of Natural Resources is not required for the proposed construction 
of new or replacement bridges or culverts where: 

(a) The bridge or culvert is located on a stream that drains less than one hundred (1 DO) square miles, 
and 

(b) The bridge or culvert is not associated with a channel modification that constitutes a channel 
change as specified in 567-71.2(1)b, Iowa Administrative Code. 

B. Performance Standards 

(1) All development, or portions thereof, to be localed in the floodway as determined by the Department 
of Natural Resources shall meet the applicable provisions and standards of the Floodway (Overlay) 
District subsection 5.03-6. 

(2) All development, or portions thereof, to be located in the floodway fringe as determined by the 
Department of Natural Resources shall meet the applicable provisions and standards of the 
Floodway Fringe (Overlay) District subsection 5.03-7. 

9. Shallow Flooding (Overlay) District (SF) 

A. Permitted Uses. All development within the Shallow Flooding District shall be permitted to the extent 
that it is not prohibited by any other ordinance (or underlying zoning district) and provided they meet 
the applicable performance standards of the Shallow Flooding District. 

B. Performance Standards. The performance standards for the Shallow Flooding District shall be the 
same as the performance standards for the Floodway Fringe District with the following exceptions: 

(1) In shallow flooding areas designated as an AO Zone on the Flood Insurance Rate Map, the 
minimum fioodproofing/fiood protection elevation shall be equal to the number of feet as specified 
on the FIRM (or a minimum of 2.0 ft. if no number is specified) above the highest natural grade 
adjacent to the structure. 

(2) In shallow flooding areas designated as an AH Zone on the Flood Insurance Rate Map, the 
minimum floodproofing/flood protection elevation shall be equal to the elevation as specified on the 
FIRM. 

86



(3) In shallow flooding areas designated as either an AH or AO Zone on the Flood Insurance Rate 
Map, drainage paths are required around structures on slopes to adequately guide floodwaters 
around and away from proposed structures. 

10. Appointment and Duties of Board of Adjustment 

A Board of Adjustment is hereby established which shall hear and decide (i) appeals, and (ii) requests 
for variances to the provisions of this ordinance, and shall take any other action which is required of 
the Board. 

A. Appeals -Where it is alleged there is any error in any order, requirement, decision, or determination 
made by an administrative official in the enforcement of this ordinance, the aggrieved party may 
appeal such action. The notice of appeal shall be filed with the Board of Adjustment and with the 
official from whom the appeal is taken and shall set forth the specific reason for the appeal. The 
official from whom the appeal is taken shall transmit to the Board of Adjustment all the documents 
constituting the record upon which the action appealed from was taken. 

B. Variance - The Board of Adjustment may authorize upon request in specific cases such variances 
from the terms of this Ordinance that will not be contrary to the public interest where, owing to 
special conditions, a literal enforcement of the provisions of this Ordinance will result in 
unnecessary hardship. Variances granted must meet the following applicable standards. 

(1) Variances shall only be granted upon: (i) a showing of good and sufficient cause, (ii) a 
determination that failure to grant the variance would result in exceptional hardship to the 
applicant, and (iii) a determination that the granting of the variance will not result in increased 
flood heights, additional threats to public safety, extraordinary public expense, create 
nuisances, cause fraud on or victimization of the public or conflict with existing local codes or 
ordinances. 

(2) Variances shall not be issued within any designated floodway if any increase in flood levels 
during the base flood would result. Consideration of the effects of any development on flood 
levels shall be based upon the assumption that an equal degree of development would be 
allowed for similarly situated lands. 

(3) Variances shall only be granted upon a determination that the variance is the minimum 
necessary, considering the flood hazard, to afford relief. 

(4) In cases where the variance involves a lower level of flood protection for buildings than what is 
ordinarily required by this Ordinance, the applicant shall be notified in writing over the signature 
of the Administrator that (i) the issuance of a variance will result in increased premium rates 
for flood insurance up to amounts as high as $25 for $100 of insurance coverage and (ii) such 
construction increases risks to life and property. 

(5) All variances granted shall have the concurrence or approval of the Department of Natural 
Resources. 

C. Hearings and Decisions of the Board of Adjustment 

(1) Hearings. Upon the filling with the Board of Adjustment of an Appeal or a request for a 
Variance, the Board shall hold a public hearing. The Board shall fix a reasonable time for the 
hearing and give public notice thereof, as well as due notice to parties in interest. At the 
hearing, any party may appear in person or by agent or attorney and present written or oral 
evidence. The Board may require the appellant or applicant to provide such information as is 
reasonably deemed necessary and may request the technical assistance and/or evaluation of 
a professional engineer or other expert person or agency, including the Depa_rtment of Natural 
Resources. 

(2) Decisions. The Board shall arrive at a decision on an Appeal or Variance within a reasonable 
lime. In passing upon an Appeal, the Board may, so long as such action is in conformity with 
the provisions of this ordinance, reverse or affirm, wholly or in part, or modify the order, 
requirement, decision, or determination appealed from, and it shall make its decision, in writing, 
setting forth the findings of fact and the reasons for its decision. In granting a Variance, the 

87

aricehi
Highlight



Board shall consider such factors as contained in this section and all other relevant sections of 
this ordinance and may prescribe such conditions as contained in subsection (bl below. 

(a) Factors Upon Which the Decision of the Board of Adjustment Shall be Based. In passing 
upon applications for Variances, the Board shall consider all relevant factors specified in 
other sections of this Ordinance and: 

(i) The danger to life and property due to increased flood heights or velocities caused 
by encroachments. 

(ii) The danger that materials may be swept on to other land or downstream to the 
injury of others. 

(iii) The proposed water supply and sanitation systems and the ability of these systems 
to prevent disease, contamination and unsanitary conditions. 

(iv) The susceptibility of the proposed facility and its contents to flood damage and the 
effect of such damage on the individual owner. 

(v) The importance of the services provided by the proposed facility to the County. 

(vi) The requirements of the facility for a floodplain location. 

(vii) The availability of alternative locations not subject to flooding for the proposed use. 

(viii) The compatibility of the proposed use with existing development and development 
anticipated in the foreseeable future. 

(ix) The relationship of the proposed use to the comprehensive plan and floodplain 
management program for the area. 

(x) The safety of access to the property in times of flood for ordinary and emergency 
vehicles. 

(xi) The expected heights, velocity, duration, rate of rise and sediment transport of the 
flood water expected at the site. 

(xii) The cost of providing governmental services during and after flood conditions, 
including maintenance and repair of public utilities (sewer, gas, electrical and water 
systems), facilities, streets and bridges. 

(xiii) Such other factors which are relevant to the purpose of this Ordinance. 

(b) Conditions Attached to Variances - Upon consideration of the factors listed above, the 
Board of Adjustment may attach such conditions to the granting of variances as it deems 
necessary to further the purpose of this Ordinance. Such conditions may include, but not 
necessarily be limited to: 

(i) Modification of waste disposal and water supply facilities. 

(ii) Limitation of periods of use and operation. 

(iii) Imposition of operational controls, sureties, and deed restrictions. 

(iv) Requirements for construction of channel modifications, dikes, levees, and other 
protective measures, provided such are approved by the Department of Natural 
Resources and are deemed the only practical alternative to achieving the purpose 
of this Ordinance. 

(v) Floodproofing measures. Floodproofing measures shall be designed consistent 
with the flood protection elevation for the particular area, flood velocities, durations, 
rate of rise, hydrostatic and hydrodynamic forces, and other factors associated with 
the regulatory flood. The Board of Adjustment shall require that the applicant submit 
a plan or document certified by a registered professional engineer that the 

88

aricehi
Highlight



flood proofing measures are consistent with the regulatory flood protection elevation 
and associated flood factors for the particular area. 

(3) Appeals to the Court• Any person or persons, jointly or severally, aggrieved by any decision of 
the Board of Adjustment may present to a court of record a petition, duly verified, setting forth 
that such decision is illegal, in whole or in part, specifying the grounds of the illegality. Such 
petition shall be presented to the court within thirty days after the filing of the decision in the 
office of the Board. 

11. Nonconforming Uses 

A. A structure or the use of a structure or premises which was lawful before the passage or amendment of 
this Ordinance, but which is not in conformity with the provisions of this Ordinance, may be continued 
subject to the following conditions: 

(1) If such use is discontinued for six (6) consecutive months, any future use of the building premises 
shall conform to this Ordinance. 

(2) Uses or adjuncts thereof that are or become nuisances shall not be entitled to continue as 
nonconforming uses. 

(3) If any nonconforming use or structure is destroyed by any means, including flood, it shall not be 
reconstructed if the cost is more than fifty (50) percent of the market value of the structure before 
the damage occurred, unless it is reconstructed in conformity with the provisions of this Ordinance. 
This limitation does not include the cost of any alteration to comply with existing state or local 
health, sanitary, building or safety codes or regulations or the cost of any alteration of a structure 
listed on the National Register of Historic Places, provided that the alteration shall not preclude its 
continued designation. 

B. Except as provided in 5.03-11 A (2), any use which has been permitted as a Variance shall be 
considered a conforming use. 

12. Penalties for Violation 

Violations of the provisions of this Ordinance or failure to comply with any of the requirements (including 
violations of conditions and safeguards established in connection with grants of Variances) shall constitute 
a misdemeanor. Any person who violates this Ordinance or fails to comply with any of its requirements 
shall upon conviction thereof be fined not more than $500 or imprisoned for not more than 30 days. Each 
day such violation continues shall be considered a separate offense. Nothing herein contained shall 
prevent Woodbury County from taking such other lawful action as is necessary to prevent or remedy 
violation. 

13. Amendments 

The regulations and standards set forth in this Ordinance may from time to lime be amended, 
supplemented, changed, or repealed. No amendment, supplement, change, or modification shall be 
undertaken without prior approval of the Department of Natural Resources. 

89



ADOPTED AND PASSED by the Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County, Iowa 

Dated this qih day of Arr; I 2022. 

THE WOODBURY COUNTY, lOWA BOARD OF SUPERVISORS: 

Matthew Ung 

Ju~ 

Adoption Timeline 
Public Hearing & I st Reading: f/la,.clr. ~ 1 Jo;l.Q 
2nd Reading: Mc. vd" ~q, ;loJ;J-
3rd Reading: Afr,· 1 51 'aO ol ~ 
Adopted: ~P r,· ,I S" 1 ~ 0 ;i_;;,., 
Effective: Apr, I 13 1 ;) O)~ 

90



WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 

ORDINANCE NO. ___ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE TEXT OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY ZONING 
ORDINANCE WITH REVISED LANGUAGE TO MEET THE MINIMUM 
REQUIREMENTS FOR ACCEPTANCE IN THE NATIONAL FLOOD INSURANCE 
PROGRAM FOR COUNTIES WHICH HAVE A DETAILED FLOOD INSURANCE 
STUDY (FIS) ISSUED BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY 
(FEMA). 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA THAT THE BELOW ZONING ORDINANCE LANGUAGE 
AMENDMENTS BE MADE: 

Amendment #1 – Section 5.03.1 AA 

On page 59, to repeal the following language from Section 5.03.1 AA: 

AA.  New Factory-Built Home Park Or Subdivision - A factory-built home park or 
subdivision for which the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the 
factory-built homes are to be affixed (including at a minimum, the installation of utilities, 
the construction of streets, and either final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads) 
is completed on or after the effective date of the effective date of the first floodplain 
management regulations adopted by the community. 

On page 59, to replace Section 5.03.1 AA with the following: 

AA. New Factory-Built Home Park Or Subdivision - A factory-built home park or 
subdivision for which the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the 
factory-built homes are to be affixed (including at a minimum, the installation of utilities, 
the construction of streets, and either final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads) 
is completed on or after the effective date of the first floodplain management regulations 
adopted by the community. 

Amendment #2 – Section 5.03.3 B 

On page 62, to repeal the following language from Section 5.03.3 B: 

B. Establishment of Official Floodplain Zoning Map.  The Flood Insurance Rate Map 
(FIRM) for Woodbury County and Incorporated Areas, dated March 2, 2015, which were 
prepared as part of the Flood Insurance Study for Woodbury County, is (are) hereby 
adopted by reference and declared to be the Official Floodplain Zoning Map.  The 
Woodbury County Flood Insurance Study is hereby adopted by reference and is made a 
part of this ordinance for the purpose of administering floodplain management 
regulations. 

91



On page 62, to replace Section 5.03.3 B with the following: 

B.  Establishment of Official Floodplain Zoning Map.  The Flood Insurance Rate Map 
(FIRM) for Woodbury County and Incorporated Areas, dated 7-17-2024, which was 
prepared as part of the Flood Insurance Study for Woodbury County, is (are) hereby 
adopted by reference and declared to be the Official Floodplain Zoning Map. The 
Woodbury County Flood Insurance Study is hereby adopted by reference and is made a 
part of this ordinance for the purpose of administering floodplain management 
regulations. 

Amendment #3 – Section 5.03.10 B(4) 

On page 72, to repeal the following language from Section 5.03.10 B(4): 

(4)  In cases where the variance involves a lower level of flood protection for buildings 
than what is ordinarily required by this Ordinance, the applicant shall be notified in 
writing over the signature of the Administrator that:  (i) the issuance of a variance will 
result in increased premium rates for flood insurance up to amounts as high as $25 for 
$100 of insurance coverage and (ii) such construction increases risks to life and 
property. 

On page 72, to replace Section 5.03.10 B(4) with the following: 

(4)  In cases where the variance involves a lower level of flood protection for structures 
than what is ordinarily required by this Ordinance, the applicant shall be notified in 
writing over the signature of the Administrator that: (i) the issuance of a variance will 
result in increased premium rates for flood insurance up to amounts as high as $25 for 
$100 of insurance coverage and (ii) such construction increases risks to life and 
property. 

Amendment #4 – Section 5.03.10 C(2) 

On page 73, to repeal the following language from Section 5.03.10 C(2): 

(2) Decisions.  The Board shall arrive at a decision on an Appeal or Variance within a 
reasonable time.  In passing upon an Appeal, the Board may, so long as such action is in 
conformity with the provisions of this ordinance, reverse or affirm, wholly or in part, or 
modify the order, requirement, decision, or determination appealed from, and it shall 
make its decision, in writing, setting forth the findings of fact and the reasons for its 
decision.  In granting a Variance, the Board shall consider such factors as contained in 
this section and all other relevant sections of this ordinance and may prescribe such 
conditions as contained in subsection (b) below. 

On page 73, to replace Section 5.03.10 C(2) with the following: 

(2) Decisions.  The Board shall arrive at a decision on an Appeal or Variance within a 
reasonable time.  In passing upon an Appeal, the Board may, so long as such action is in 
conformity with the provisions of this ordinance, reverse or affirm, wholly or in part, or 
modify the order, requirement, decision, or determination appealed from, and it shall 

92



make its decision, in writing, setting forth the findings of fact and the reasons for its 
decision.  In granting a Variance, the Board shall consider such factors as contained in 
this section and all other relevant sections of this ordinance and may prescribe such 
conditions as contained in 5.03-10 C(2)(b). 

ADOPTED AND PASSED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF WOODBURY 
COUNTY, IOWA 

Dated this _____ day of _______, 2024. 

THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

__________________ 
Matthew Ung, Chairman 

__________________ 
Daniel Bittinger II, Vice-Chairman 

__________________ 
Mark Nelson 

__________________ 
Keith Radig 

__________________ 
Jeremy Taylor 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 
Patrick F. Gill, Woodbury County Auditor 

Adoption Timeline: 
Public Hearing and 1st Reading: ______________ 
Public Hearing and 2nd Reading: ______________ 
Public Hearing and 3rd Reading: ______________ 
Adopted:  ______________ 
Effective: ______________ 

93



W
H

A
T 

IS
 A

 C
O

M
P

R
E

H
E

N
SI

V
E

 P
LA

N
?

Th
e 

dr
af

t p
la

n 
ca

n 
be

 v
ie

w
ed

 a
t:

sim
pc

o.
or

g/
cu

rre
nt

-p
ro

je
ct

s

•
A

 v
is

io
n

 fo
r 

th
e 

fu
tu

re
•

A
 d

ec
is

io
n

-m
ak

in
g

 g
u

id
e:

w
h

at
 g

oe
s 

w
h

er
e?

•
A

 b
as

is
 fo

r 
p

ol
ic

y
•

Fl
ex

ib
le

 a
n

d
 a

d
ap

ti
ve

A
 c

o
m

p
re

h
en

si
ve

 
p

la
n

 is
:

A
 c

o
m

p
re

h
en

si
ve

 
p

la
n

 is
 n

o
t:

•
A

 z
on

in
g

 o
rd

in
an

ce
•

A
 r

ig
id

, u
n

ch
an

g
in

g
 p

ol
ic

y
•

Sp
ec

ifi
c 

in
 s

co
p

e
•

Th
e 

on
ly

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 t
oo

l u
se

d
b

y 
th

e 
co

u
n

ty

St
ee

ri
n

g
 c

om
m

it
te

e 
ki

ck
-o

ff
 m

ee
ti

n
g

St
ee

ri
n

g
 c

om
m

it
te

e 
m

ee
ti

n
g

 #
2

St
ee

ri
n

g
 c

om
m

it
te

e 
m

ee
ti

n
g

 #
3

St
ee

ri
n

g
 c

om
m

it
te

e 
m

ee
ti

n
g

 #
4

P
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 Z

on
in

g
 

B
oa

rd
 A

p
p

ro
va

l

P
u

b
lic

 in
p

u
t 

su
rv

ey

P
u

b
lic

 o
u

tr
ea

ch
 p

op
-

u
p

 e
ve

n
t

O
p

en
 h

ou
se

s 
(4

)

P
u

b
lic

 R
ev

ie
w

 P
er

io
d

P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 t

o 
ad

op
t 

fin
al

 
p

la
n

 -
 B

oa
rd

 o
f S

u
p

er
vi

so
rs

 

P
la

n
 T

im
el

in
e

W
oo

d
b

u
ry

 C
ou

n
ty

 is
 a

 p
la

ce
 w

h
er

e:
••

ru
ra

l c
h

a
ra

ct
er

 
ru

ra
l c

h
a

ra
ct

er
 a

n
d

 a
 

a
n

d
 a

 s
tr

o
n

g
 s

en
se

 o
f c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
st

ro
n

g
 s

en
se

 o
f c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
a

re
 s

h
a

re
d

;
 a

re
 s

h
a

re
d

;
••

la
n

d
 d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t
la

n
d

 d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

is
 m

a
n

a
g

ed
 i

n
 a

 w
a

y 
th

a
t 

co
m

p
le

m
en

ts
 i

s 
m

a
n

a
g

ed
 i

n
 a

 w
a

y 
th

a
t 

co
m

p
le

m
en

ts
a

n
d

 
a

n
d

 e
n

h
a

n
ce

s 
th

e 
C

o
u

n
ty

’s
 c

h
a

ra
ct

er
 

en
h

a
n

ce
s 

th
e 

C
o

u
n

ty
’s

 c
h

a
ra

ct
er

 a
n

d
 

a
n

d
 u

p
h

o
ld

s 
re

si
d

en
ts

’
u

p
h

o
ld

s 
re

si
d

en
ts

’
id

ea
ls

id
ea

ls
;;

••
ec

on
om

ic
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

is
 r

oo
te

d
 i

n
 a

 
ec

on
om

ic
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

is
 r

oo
te

d
 i

n
 a

 d
iv

er
se

, 
a

g
ri

cu
lt

u
re

-
d

iv
er

se
, 

a
g

ri
cu

lt
u

re
-

b
a

se
d

 e
co

n
o

m
y

b
a

se
d

 e
co

n
o

m
y,

 fo
cu

se
d

 o
n

 o
p

p
or

tu
n

it
ie

s t
o 

g
ro

w
 a

n
d

 
, f

oc
u

se
d

 o
n

 o
p

p
or

tu
n

it
ie

s t
o 

g
ro

w
 a

n
d

 e
n

h
a

n
ce

en
h

a
n

ce
ex

is
ti

n
g

 
b

u
si

n
es

se
s 

a
n

d
 

in
d

u
st

ry
ex

is
ti

n
g

 
b

u
si

n
es

se
s 

a
n

d
 

in
d

u
st

ry
, 

p
ro

vi
d

e 
a

 
su

p
p

or
ti

ve
, 

p
ro

vi
d

e 
a

 
su

p
p

or
ti

ve
en

vi
ro

n
m

en
t 

fo
r 

en
vi

ro
n

m
en

t 
fo

r 
n

ew
 

en
te

rp
ri

se
s

n
ew

 
en

te
rp

ri
se

s,
 

a
n

d
 

d
ev

el
op

 
a

 
, 

a
n

d
 

d
ev

el
op

 
a

 
ro

b
u

st
ro

b
u

st
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e;;
••

co
n

se
rv

a
ti

on
 a

n
d

 
co

n
se

rv
a

ti
on

 a
n

d
 s

te
w

a
rd

sh
ip

 o
f n

a
tu

ra
l r

es
o

u
rc

es
st

ew
a

rd
sh

ip
 o

f n
a

tu
ra

l r
es

o
u

rc
es

 is
 a

 m
a

tt
er

 is
 a

 m
a

tt
er

of
 p

ri
d

e 
a

n
d

 s
h

a
re

d
 o

w
n

er
sh

ip
;

of
 p

ri
d

e 
a

n
d

 s
h

a
re

d
 o

w
n

er
sh

ip
;

••
d

em
a

n
d

 fo
r a

 
d

em
a

n
d

 fo
r a

 q
u

a
lit

y 
a

n
d

 a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
 o

f l
iv

in
g

q
u

a
lit

y 
a

n
d

 a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
 o

f l
iv

in
g

 is
 m

et
;

 is
 m

et
;

••
g

ov
er

n
m

en
t 

ex
is

ts
 t

o 
g

ov
er

n
m

en
t 

ex
is

ts
 t

o 
se

rv
e 

p
eo

p
le

 a
n

d
 t

o
 p

ro
te

ct
 t

h
e 

p
u

b
lic

se
rv

e 
p

eo
p

le
 a

n
d

 t
o

 p
ro

te
ct

 t
h

e 
p

u
b

lic
h

ea
lt

h
, 

sa
fe

ty
, 

a
n

d
 w

el
fa

re
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 a

 p
ro

sp
er

o
u

s 
a

n
d

h
ea

lt
h

, 
sa

fe
ty

, 
a

n
d

 w
el

fa
re

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 a
 p

ro
sp

er
o

u
s 

a
n

d
re

si
lie

n
t 

fu
tu

re
.

re
si

lie
n

t 
fu

tu
re

.

D
ra

ft
 V

is
io

n
 S

ta
te

m
en

t

”

“

Fi
na

l P
ub

lic
 O

pe
n 

Ho
us

e

St
ee

ri
n

g
 c

om
m

it
te

e 
m

ee
ti

n
g

 #
5

94



H
O
U
SI
N
G

Im
p

ro
ve

 t
h

e 
co

n
d

it
io

n
 o

f 
ex

is
ti

n
g

 h
o

u
si

n
g

 
st

o
ck

 to
 e

n
su

re
 h

o
m

es
 a

re
 s

af
e,

 e
ffi

ci
en

t,
 a

n
d

 
re

si
lie

n
t.

 •P
ro

vi
d

e 
re

h
ab

ili
ta

ti
on

 a
ss

is
ta

n
ce

 r
es

ou
rc

es
 f

or
 h

om
e-

ow
n

er
s 

liv
in

g
 in

 h
is

to
ri

c 
or

 o
u

td
at

ed
 s

tr
u

ct
u

re
s.

 •T
ar

g
et

 o
u

tr
ea

ch
 to

 m
in

or
it

y 
an

d
 u

n
d

er
-r

es
ou

rc
ed

 c
om

-
m

u
n

it
ie

s 
to

 e
n

su
re

 t
h

at
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 re
so

u
rc

es
 a

re
 

eq
u

it
ab

ly
 d

is
tr

ib
u

te
d

.
 •T

ar
g

et
 o

u
tr

ea
ch

 t
o 

h
om

eo
w

n
er

s 
th

at
 m

ay
 b

e 
im

p
ac

t-
ed

 b
y 

d
is

as
te

rs
, i

n
 n

ee
d

 o
f s

ep
ti

c 
sy

st
em

 u
p

d
at

es
, l

ea
d

 
ab

at
em

en
t, 

or
 o

th
er

 im
m

ed
ia

te
 s

af
et

y 
co

n
ce

rn
s.

In
cr

ea
se

 t
h

e 
va

ri
et

y 
o

f 
h

o
u

si
n

g
 o

p
ti

o
n

s 
to

 
m

ax
im

iz
e 

af
fo

rd
ab

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 a

va
ila

b
ili

ty
 fo

r r
es

-
id

en
ts

 o
f 

al
l i

n
co

m
e 

le
ve

ls
.

 •E
n

co
u

ra
g

e 
fle

xi
b

le
 z

on
in

g
 to

 a
llo

w
 fo

r h
om

e 
ad

d
it

io
n

s 
an

d
 a

cc
es

so
ry

 u
n

it
s.

 •I
n

cr
ea

se
 t

h
e 

q
u

an
ti

ty
 o

f h
ig

h
 q

u
al

it
y,

 a
ff

or
d

ab
le

 r
en

ta
l 

G
oa

ls
u

n
it

s 
b

y 
en

co
u

ra
g

in
g

 t
h

e 
d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

of
 a

 v
ar

ie
ty

 o
f 

m
u

lt
i-

fa
m

ily
 h

ou
si

n
g

 o
p

ti
on

s 
w

it
h

in
 in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 c

it
-

ie
s 

th
at

 m
ee

t t
h

e 
d

iv
er

se
 n

ee
d

s 
of

 re
si

d
en

ts
 o

f a
ll 

ag
es

.
 •I
n

cr
ea

se
 t

h
e 

n
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
n

g
 u

n
it

s 
in

 
W

oo
d

b
u

ry
 C

ou
n

ty
.

 •E
n

co
u

ra
g

e 
th

e 
d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f u
p

p
er

 st
or

y 
u

n
it

s a
b

ov
e 

d
ow

n
to

w
n

 s
to

re
 f

ro
n

ts
 t

o 
in

tr
od

u
ce

 a
d

d
it

io
n

al
 h

ou
s-

in
g

 v
ar

ie
ty

 in
 s

m
al

l t
ow

n
s.

 
P

re
se

rv
e 

th
e 

ru
ra

l c
h

ar
ac

te
r 

o
f 

th
e 

co
u

n
ty

.
 •L

im
it

 d
en

si
ty

 in
 r

u
ra

l a
re

as
 o

u
ts

id
e 

of
 in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 c

it
-

ie
s.

 
 •P

ro
te

ct
 a

g
ri

cu
lt

u
ra

l l
an

d
, w

ild
lif

e 
h

ab
it

at
, a

n
d

 o
u

td
oo

r 
re

cr
ea

ti
on

al
 la

n
d

. 
 •P

ri
or

it
iz

e 
n

ew
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

to
 l

oc
at

e 
ad

ja
ce

n
t 

to
 e

x-
is

ti
n

g
 t

ow
n

 l
im

it
s,

 a
n

d
 p

ri
or

it
iz

e 
th

e 
re

h
ab

ili
ta

ti
on

 o
f 

ex
is

ti
n

g
 s

tr
u

ct
u

re
s,

 in
fil

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

t, 
an

d
 b

ro
w

n
fie

ld
 

re
d

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

 

Im
ag

e 
so

u
rc

e:
 Io

w
a 

La
n

d
 C

om
p

an
y

E
xp

an
d

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 s

af
e,

 h
ig

h
-q

u
al

it
y 

h
o

u
si

n
g

 
fo

r 
al

l r
es

id
en

ts
 o

f 
W

o
o

d
b

u
ry

 C
o

u
n

ty
. 

 •D
ir

ec
t f

u
n

d
in

g
 to

w
ar

d
 th

e 
p

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f h

ig
h

-q
u

al
it

y,
 a

f-
fo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

n
g

 o
p

ti
on

s 
fo

r 
vu

ln
er

ab
le

 p
op

u
la

ti
on

s:
 

lo
w

-i
n

co
m

e 
re

si
d

en
ts

, s
en

io
rs

, a
n

d
 r

es
id

en
ts

 w
it

h
 d

is
-

ab
ili

ti
es

.
 •D

ir
ec

t 
fu

n
d

in
g

 t
ow

ar
d

 e
m

er
g

en
cy

 s
h

el
te

rs
, h

ou
si

n
g

, 
an

d
 s

oc
ia

l 
w

or
k 

se
rv

ic
es

 f
or

 h
om

el
es

s 
in

d
iv

id
u

al
s 

liv
-

in
g

 in
 t

h
e 

co
u

n
ty

.
 •C

on
n

ec
t 

re
si

d
en

ts
 w

it
h

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 o
p

p
or

tu
n

it
ie

s 
th

at
 

p
ro

vi
d

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 a

ss
is

ta
n

ce
 fo

r 
h

ou
si

n
g

 r
eh

ab
.

A
ss

is
t 

re
si

d
en

ts
 i

n
 t

h
e 

p
at

h
 f

ro
m

 r
en

ti
n

g
 t

o
 

b
ec

o
m

in
g

 h
o

m
eo

w
n

er
s.

 •C
on

n
ec

t 
re

si
d

en
ts

 w
it

h
 i

n
fo

rm
at

io
n

 a
n

d
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 
th

at
 a

id
 in

 t
h

e 
p

u
rc

h
as

e 
of

 h
om

es
, s

u
ch

 a
s 

d
ow

n
 p

ay
-

m
en

t 
as

si
st

an
ce

 g
ra

n
ts

 f
or

 fi
rs

t 
ti

m
e 

or
 l

ow
-i

n
co

m
e 

re
si

d
en

ts
, a

n
d

 lo
w

-c
os

t fi
n

an
ci

al
 c

ou
n

se
lin

g
. P

ar
ti

cu
la

r 
ca

re
 s

h
ou

ld
 b

e 
ta

ke
n

 t
o 

re
ac

h
 o

u
t 

to
 r

es
id

en
ts

 o
f 

co
l-

or
 a

n
d

 im
m

ig
ra

n
t c

om
m

u
n

it
ie

s 
w

it
h

 th
es

e 
op

p
or

tu
n

i-
ti

es
; p

ro
vi

d
in

g
 r

es
ou

rc
es

, i
n

fo
rm

at
io

n
, a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

or
t 

in
 

re
si

d
en

ts
’ n

at
iv

e 
la

n
g

u
ag

e 
w

h
en

 a
p

p
lic

ab
le

.

95



E
C

O
N

O
M

IC
 D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T
C

o
o

rd
in

at
e 

ec
o

n
o

m
ic

 
d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
in

it
ia

-
ti

ve
s 

w
it

h
 r

eg
io

n
al

 p
ri

o
ri

ti
es

.
• 

C
oo

rd
in

at
e 

ec
on

om
ic

 
d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

in
it

ia
ti

ve
s 

w
it

h
Č

th
e 

C
om

p
re

h
en

si
ve

 E
co

n
om

ic
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

St
ra

te
g

yČ
(C

E
D

S)
 C

om
m

it
te

e 
an

d
 re

fe
r t

o 
th

e 
C

E
D

S 
d

oc
u

m
en

t t
oČ

en
su

re
 a

lig
n

m
en

t 
w

it
h

 t
h

e 
g

oa
ls

 a
n

d
 

st
ra

te
g

ie
s 

th
er

e-
in

.
M

ai
n

ta
in

 c
o

re
 i

n
d

u
st

ri
es

 t
h

at
 a

re
 t

h
e 

b
ac

k-
b

o
n

e 
o

f 
W

o
o

d
b

u
ry

 
C

o
u

n
ty

’s
 

ec
o

n
o

m
y 

b
y 

m
ar

ke
ti

n
g

 S
io

u
xl

an
d

 a
s 

a 
re

g
io

n
al

 c
en

te
r 

fo
r 

fo
o

d
 p

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

 a
n

d
 r

el
at

ed
 a

g
ri

cu
lt

u
ra

l 
in

-
d

u
st

ri
es

. 
 •M

ai
n

ta
in

 W
oo

d
b

u
ry

 C
ou

n
ty

’s
 A

C
T®

 W
or

k 
R

ea
d

y 
C

om
-

m
u

n
it

y 
st

at
u

s.
 •C

on
ti

n
u

al
ly

 c
om

m
u

n
ic

at
e 

w
it

h
 i

n
d

u
st

ry
 l

ea
d

er
s 

to
id

en
ti

fy
 e

m
er

g
in

g
 in

-d
em

an
d

 s
ki

lls
 a

n
d

 q
u

al
ifi

ca
ti

on
s.

 •W
or

k 
w

it
h

 lo
ca

l c
ol

le
g

es
 a

n
d

 h
ig

h
 s

ch
oo

ls
 to

 c
on

ti
n

u
al

-
ly

 im
p

ro
ve

 t
ra

in
in

g
 o

p
p

or
tu

n
it

ie
s 

fo
r 

st
u

d
en

ts
 t

o 
le

ar
n

in
-d

em
an

d
 s

ki
lls

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 t

o 
su

p
p

or
t 

th
e 

re
g

io
n

’s
 in

-
d

u
st

ry
 c

lu
st

er
s.

 •C
oo

rd
in

at
e 

ac
ro

ss
 ju

ri
sd

ic
ti

on
s 

to
 a

ss
is

t 
in

 t
h

e 
m

ar
ke

t-
in

g
 a

n
d

 p
ro

m
ot

io
n

 o
f t

h
e 

co
u

n
ty

’s
 C

er
ti

fie
d

 S
it

es
.

G
o

al
s

E
n

co
u

ra
g

e 
th

e 
d

iv
er

si
fi

ca
ti

o
n

 o
f 

W
o

o
d

b
u

ry
 

C
o

u
n

ty
’s

 e
co

n
o

m
y,

 i
n

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 o
f 

sm
al

l 
b

u
si

-
n

es
se

s 
w

h
ic

h
 g

en
er

at
e 

n
ea

rl
y 

h
al

f 
o

f 
al

l e
co

-
n

o
m

ic
 a

ct
iv

it
y 

n
at

io
n

w
id

e,
 a

s 
w

el
l 

as
 l

ar
g

er
 

en
te

rp
ri

se
s.

 •C
oo

rd
in

at
e 

w
it

h
 c

it
y 

ju
ri

sd
ic

ti
on

s 
of

 W
oo

d
b

u
ry

 C
ou

n
-

ty
 t

o 
of

fe
r 

ac
ce

ss
 t

o 
su

p
p

or
ti

ve
 r

es
ou

rc
es

, n
et

w
or

ki
n

g
op

p
or

tu
n

it
ie

s,
 a

n
d

 fi
n

an
ci

al
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 f

or
 r

es
id

en
ts

in
te

re
st

ed
 in

 s
ta

rt
in

g
 a

 s
m

al
l b

u
si

n
es

s.
 •M

ai
n

ta
in

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
it

h
 Io

w
a’

s 
W

es
t 

C
oa

st
 In

it
ia

ti
ve

to
 d

ev
el

op
 e

co
n

om
ic

 o
p

p
or

tu
n

it
ie

s 
in

 t
h

e 
Si

ou
xl

an
d

re
g

io
n

.
 •C

on
si

d
er

 th
e 

d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f a

lt
er

n
at

iv
e 

en
er

g
y 

in
d

u
s-

tr
y 

p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s.
 •P

ro
vi

d
e 

la
n

g
u

ag
e 

su
p

p
or

ts
 f

or
 n

on
-E

n
g

lis
h

 s
p

ea
ki

n
g

b
u

si
n

es
s 

ow
n

er
s,

 p
ro

sp
ec

ti
ve

 b
u

si
n

es
s 

ow
n

er
s 

,a
n

d
em

p
lo

ye
es

 w
h

er
e 

n
ec

es
sa

ry
.

Im
ag

e 
so

u
rc

e:
 M

es
se

n
g

er
N

ew
s.

n
et

W
o

rk
 to

 e
n

h
an

ce
 W

o
o

d
b

u
ry

 C
o

u
n

ty
’s

 q
u

al
it

y 
o

f l
if

e 
to

 d
ra

w
 a

n
d

 re
ta

in
 fa

m
ili

es
, e

m
p

lo
ye

es
, 

an
d

 r
es

id
en

ts
 o

f 
al

l a
g

es
 in

 t
h

e 
re

g
io

n
.

•
C

on
ti

n
u

e 
to

 i
n

ve
st

 i
n

 i
n

n
ov

at
iv

e 
im

p
ro

ve
m

en
ts

 s
u

ch
as

 r
ec

re
at

io
n

 a
n

d
 e

n
te

rt
ai

n
m

en
t 

op
p

or
tu

n
it

ie
s.

•
B

u
ild

 u
p

on
 u

n
iq

u
e 

as
se

ts
 o

f t
h

e 
co

u
n

ty
, s

u
ch

 a
s 

n
at

u
-

ra
l f

ea
tu

re
s 

an
d

 h
is

to
ri

ca
l r

es
ou

rc
es

 to
 c

re
at

e 
en

ri
ch

in
g

cu
lt

u
ra

l e
xp

er
ie

n
ce

s 
fo

r 
re

si
d

en
ts

.
•

Im
p

ro
ve

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 in

te
rn

et
 c

on
n

ec
ti

vi
ty

 b
y 

in
ve

st
in

g
 in

b
ro

ad
b

an
d

 in
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

.
E

n
su

re
 t

h
at

 e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
al

 a
n

d
 e

co
n

o
m

ic
 o

p
-

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

ar
e 

eq
u

it
ab

ly
 a

cc
es

si
b

le
 to

 a
ll 

re
s-

id
en

ts
 r

eg
ar

d
le

ss
 o

f 
ra

ce
, 

ag
e,

 s
ex

, 
re

lig
io

n
, 

o
r 

ab
ili

ty
.

 •C
on

ti
n

u
e 

to
 id

en
ti

fy
 a

n
d

 f
ac

ili
ta

te
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

-
at

e 
su

p
p

or
ts

 a
n

d
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 f
or

 r
es

id
en

ts
 s

tr
u

g
g

lin
g

w
it

h
 p

ov
er

ty
.

 •W
or

k 
ac

ro
ss

 ju
ri

sd
ic

ti
on

s 
an

d
 w

it
h

 u
n

d
er

re
p

re
se

n
te

d
p

op
u

la
ti

on
s,

 s
u

ch
 a

s 
p

eo
p

le
 o

f c
ol

or
, l

ow
-i

n
co

m
e 

re
si

-
d

en
ts

, a
n

d
 th

os
e 

w
it

h
 d

is
ab

ili
ti

es
, t

o 
id

en
ti

fy
 b

ar
ri

er
s 

to
ed

u
ca

ti
on

al
 a

cc
es

s 
an

d
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

ap
p

ro
p

ri
at

e 
se

rv
ic

es
an

d
 s

u
p

p
or

t.
 •A

ct
iv

el
y 

m
ar

ke
t 

ed
u

ca
ti

on
al

 a
n

d
 jo

b
 o

p
p

or
tu

n
it

ie
s 

to
u

n
d

er
re

p
re

se
n

te
d

 c
om

m
u

n
it

ie
s.

E
n

co
u

ra
g

e 
h

ea
lt

h
y 

lif
es

ty
le

s 
to

 m
ax

im
iz

e 
re

s-
id

en
ts

’ q
u

al
it

y 
o

f 
lif

e.
 •S

u
p

p
or

t 
th

e 
ex

p
an

si
on

 o
f h

ea
lt

h
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

cl
in

-
ic

s 
an

d
 e

xe
rc

is
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
in

 r
u

ra
l a

re
as

.
 •R

ef
er

 t
o 

th
e 

Si
ou

xl
an

d
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

H
ea

lt
h

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t’s

H
ea

lt
h

 N
ee

d
s 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

an
d

 H
ea

lt
h

 I
m

p
ro

ve
m

en
t

P
la

n
 fo

r g
u

id
an

ce
 a

n
d

 c
on

si
d

er
 th

e 
h

ea
lt

h
 a

n
d

 w
el

ln
es

s
im

p
ac

ts
 o

f a
ll 

co
u

n
ty

 a
ct

iv
it

ie
s,

 p
ro

g
ra

m
s,

 a
n

d
 p

ol
ic

ie
s.

 •S
u

p
p

or
t 

ed
u

ca
ti

on
 f

or
 r

eg
u

la
r 

w
el

ln
es

s 
ex

am
s 

to
 i

n
-

cr
ea

se
 e

ar
ly

 d
et

ec
ti

on
 o

f s
er

io
u

s 
ill

n
es

s.

96



TR
A

N
SP

O
R

TA
TI

O
N

P
ri

o
ri

ti
ze

 u
se

r s
af

et
y 

ac
ro

ss
 a

ll 
tr

an
sp

o
rt

at
io

n
 

m
o

d
es

 in
 W

o
o

d
b

u
ry

 C
o

u
n

ty
.

•
C

on
ti

n
u

al
ly

 s
ee

k 
to

 i
m

p
ro

ve
 s

af
et

y 
fo

r 
al

l 
tr

an
sp

or
ta

-
ti

on
 u

se
rs

.
•

C
on

ti
n

u
e 

to
 r

eh
ab

ili
ta

te
 o

r 
re

p
la

ce
 p

oo
rl

y-
ra

te
d

 b
ri

d
g

-
es

.
•

C
on

ti
n

u
e 

to
 w

or
k 

w
it

h
 Io

w
a 

D
O

T 
an

d
 th

e 
p

u
b

lic
 to

 id
en

-
ti

fy
 h

ig
h

w
ay

s 
in

 n
ee

d
 o

f m
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
 o

r 
re

su
rf

ac
in

g
.

•
W

or
k 

w
it

h
 m

u
n

ic
ip

al
 a

n
d

 s
ta

te
 ju

ri
sd

ic
ti

on
s 

to
 a

d
d

re
ss

so
u

rc
es

 o
f f

re
q

u
en

t 
tr

af
fic

 in
ci

d
en

ts
.

•
P

ro
vi

d
e 

sa
fe

ty
-e

n
h

an
ci

n
g

 in
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

 d
ed

ic
at

ed
 t

o
b

ic
yc

lis
ts

 a
n

d
 p

ed
es

tr
ia

n
s 

to
 re

d
u

ce
 c

on
fli

ct
s 

b
et

w
ee

n
th

es
e 

u
se

rs
 a

n
d

 v
eh

ic
le

s.
•

Se
ek

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 f
or

 r
ai

lr
oa

d
 c

ro
ss

in
g

 s
af

et
y 

im
p

ro
ve

-
m

en
ts

.
•

In
co

rp
ra

te
 p

ri
n

ci
p

le
s 

of
 t

h
e 

Fe
d

er
al

 H
ig

h
w

ay
 A

d
m

in
is

-
tr

at
io

n
’s

 S
af

e 
Sy

st
em

 A
p

p
ro

ac
h

 in
to

 ro
ad

w
ay

 d
es

ig
n

 to
re

d
u

ce
 c

ra
sh

 fr
eq

u
en

cy
 a

n
d

 s
ev

er
it

y.
E

n
su

re
 e

q
u

it
ab

le
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 W
o

o
d

b
u

ry
 C

o
u

n
-

ty
’s

 t
ra

n
sp

o
rt

at
io

n
 s

ys
te

m
 f

o
r 

al
l r

es
id

en
ts

.
•

P
ro

m
ot

e 
th

e 
Si

ou
xl

an
d

 
R

eg
io

n
al

 
Tr

an
si

t 
Sy

st
em

th
ro

u
g

h
ou

t 
th

e 
co

u
n

ty
, m

ak
in

g
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 a

va
ila

b
le

in
 S

p
an

is
h

 a
n

d
 o

th
er

 fr
eq

u
en

tl
y-

sp
ok

en
 la

n
g

u
ag

es
..

G
o

al
s

•
C

on
si

d
er

 th
e 

n
ee

d
s 

of
 a

ll 
tr

an
sp

or
ta

ti
on

 u
se

rs
, e

sp
ec

ia
l-

ly
 t

h
os

e 
w

h
o 

h
av

e 
m

ob
ili

ty
 li

m
it

at
io

n
s 

d
u

e 
to

 p
h

ys
ic

al
,

in
te

lle
ct

u
al

, o
r 

d
ev

el
op

m
en

ta
l d

is
ab

ili
ty

; a
g

e;
 in

co
m

e;
or

 la
n

g
u

ag
e 

b
ar

ri
er

s.
•

Su
p

p
or

t t
h

e 
u

se
 o

f a
lt

er
n

at
iv

e 
m

od
es

 o
f t

ra
n

sp
or

ta
ti

on
w

it
h

 t
h

e 
in

st
al

la
ti

on
 o

f 
in

fr
as

tr
u

ct
u

re
 s

u
ch

 a
s 

b
ic

yc
le

fa
ci

lit
ie

s,
 s

id
ew

al
ks

, t
ra

ils
, a

n
d

 g
re

en
w

ay
s.

M
it

ig
at

e 
th

e 
en

vi
ro

n
m

en
ta

l i
m

p
ac

ts
 o

f t
ra

n
s-

p
o

rt
at

io
n

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
w

h
ile

 p
ro

ac
ti

ve
ly

 s
ee

k
in

g
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

fo
r 

lo
n

g
-t

er
m

 t
ra

n
sp

o
rt

at
io

n
 

su
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
.

•
Ta

ke
 a

d
va

n
ta

g
e 

of
 f

ed
er

al
 a

n
d

 s
ta

te
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 t

o 
ex

-
p

an
d

 i
n

fr
as

tr
u

ct
u

re
 f

or
 e

le
ct

ri
c 

ve
h

ic
le

s 
th

ro
u

g
h

ou
t

th
e 

co
u

n
ty

, i
n

cl
u

d
in

g
 r

u
ra

l a
re

as
.

•
P

re
se

rv
e 

sc
en

ic
 v

ie
w

s,
 o

p
en

 s
p

ac
e,

 a
n

d
 h

is
to

ri
c 

or
 c

u
l-

tu
ra

l f
ea

tu
re

s 
al

on
g

 t
h

e 
Lo

es
s 

H
ill

s 
N

at
io

n
al

 S
ce

n
ic

 B
y-

w
ay

.
•

R
ef

er
 to

 t
h

e 
E

n
vi

ro
n

m
en

ta
l M

it
ig

at
io

n
 A

ct
iv

it
ie

s 
of

 t
h

e
SR

TP
A

 L
on

g
 R

an
g

e 
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

ti
on

 P
la

n
 b

ef
or

e 
an

d
th

ro
u

g
h

ou
t 

al
l 

tr
an

sp
or

ta
ti

on
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 d
ev

el
op

-
m

en
t 

ac
ti

vi
ti

es
.

•
C

ol
la

b
or

at
e 

w
it

h
 e

n
vi

ro
n

m
en

ta
l 

st
ew

ar
d

sh
ip

 o
rg

an
i-

za
ti

on
s 

to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
th

e 
p

ot
en

ti
al

 c
on

se
q

u
en

ce
s 

of

Im
ag

e 
so

u
rc

e:
 G

ol
d

en
 H

ill
s 

R
C

&
D

tr
an

sp
or

ta
ti

on
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

fo
r n

at
u

ra
l a

n
d

 c
u

lt
u

ra
l r

es
ou

rc
-

es
, a

n
d

 re
si

d
en

ts
’ h

ea
lt

h
. C

ar
e 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
ta

ke
n

 to
 a

vo
id

 
or

 m
in

im
iz

e 
th

es
e 

im
p

ac
ts

.
•

W
or

k 
w

it
h

 t
h

e 
Si

ou
xl

an
d

 R
eg

io
n

al
 T

ra
n

si
t 

Sy
st

em
 t

o
p

ro
m

ot
e 

p
u

b
lic

 a
n

d
 s

h
ar

ed
 t

ra
n

si
t 

op
p

or
tu

n
it

ie
s 

to
em

p
lo

ye
rs

, s
u

ch
 a

s 
va

n
p

oo
lin

g
.

•
P

ar
tn

er
 w

it
h

 m
u

n
ic

ip
al

it
ie

s 
to

 d
ev

el
op

 c
ar

p
oo

lin
g

 lo
ts

w
h

er
e 

re
si

d
en

ts
 c

an
 le

av
e 

ve
ch

ic
le

s 
d

u
ri

n
g

 w
or

k 
h

ou
rs

.
E

xp
an

d
 t

h
e 

n
et

w
o

rk
 o

f 
m

u
lt

i-
u

se
 t

ra
ils

 i
n

 
W

o
o

d
b

u
ry

 C
o

u
n

ty
.

•
C

ol
la

b
or

at
e 

w
it

h
 t

h
e 

W
oo

d
b

u
ry

 C
ou

n
ty

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n
B

oa
rd

 to
 m

ai
n

ta
in

 a
n

d
 e

xp
an

d
 th

e 
C

ou
n

ty
 tr

ai
l s

ys
te

m
.

•
St

ri
ve

 t
o 

m
ak

e 
re

g
io

n
al

 t
ra

il 
co

n
n

ec
ti

on
s 

b
et

w
ee

n
 t

h
e

tr
ai

l s
ys

te
m

s 
of

 C
ou

n
ty

 a
n

d
 m

u
n

ic
ip

al
 p

ar
ks

.
•

A
lig

n
 C

ou
n

ty
 t

ra
il 

p
la

n
s 

w
it

h
 t

h
e 

vi
si

on
, g

oa
ls

, s
tr

at
e-

g
ie

s,
 a

n
d

 r
ec

om
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

of
 t

h
e 

Io
w

a 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t
of

 T
ra

n
sp

or
ta

ti
on

’s
 B

ic
yc

le
 a

n
d

 P
ed

es
tr

ia
n

 L
on

g
 R

an
g

e
P

la
n

.
M

ai
n

ta
in

 t
h

e 
q

u
al

it
y 

an
d

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 o

f 
h

ig
h

 
p

ri
o

ri
ty

 
ro

ad
w

ay
s,

 
ra

ilw
ay

s,
 

w
at

er
, 

an
d 

ai
r 

se
rv

ic
es

 t
h

at
 a

re
 e

ss
en

ti
al

 t
o

 t
h

e 
re

g
io

n
al

 
ec

o
n

o
m

y.

•
P

ri
or

it
iz

e 
h

ig
h

er
-v

ol
u

m
e 

ro
ad

w
ay

s 
an

d
 t

h
os

e 
th

at
 a

re
u

se
d

 to
 tr

an
sp

or
t g

oo
d

s,
 s

u
ch

 a
s 

fa
rm

 to
 m

ar
ke

t r
ou

te
s,

ro
ad

w
ay

s 
al

on
g

 i
n

d
u

st
ri

al
 a

n
d

 c
om

m
er

ci
al

 c
or

ri
d

or
s,

an
d

 r
oa

d
w

ay
s 

co
n

n
ec

ti
n

g
 t

o 
in

te
rm

od
al

 f
ac

ili
ti

es
 f

or
re

h
ab

ili
ta

ti
on

 a
n

d
 r

ep
ai

r.
•

E
n

co
u

ra
g

e 
p

ro
je

ct
s 

th
at

 in
cr

ea
se

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
, m

in
im

iz
e

co
n

g
es

ti
on

, a
n

d
 r

ed
u

ce
 e

n
er

g
y 

ex
p

en
d

it
u

re
.

•
C

on
si

d
er

 li
fe

 c
yc

le
 c

os
ts

 in
 d

ec
is

io
n

-m
ak

in
g

, t
ak

in
g

 in
to

ac
co

u
n

t 
th

e 
co

st
 o

f 
m

ai
n

ta
in

in
g

 n
ew

 in
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

 in
th

e 
lo

n
g

-t
er

m
.

•
W

h
er

e 
p

os
si

b
le

, p
ri

or
it

iz
e 

im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t o
f e

xi
st

in
g

 s
ys

-
te

m
s 

ov
er

 e
xp

an
si

on
 o

f n
ew

 in
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

.
•

Su
p

p
or

t 
th

e 
m

ai
n

te
n

an
ce

 a
n

d
 e

xp
an

si
on

 o
f 

co
m

m
er

-
ci

al
 a

ir
lin

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
in

 S
io

u
x 

G
at

ew
ay

 A
ir

p
or

t.
•

Su
p

p
or

t 
th

e 
es

ta
b

lis
h

m
en

t 
of

 a
d

d
it

io
n

al
 b

ar
g

e 
te

rm
i-

n
al

s 
on

 t
h

e 
M

is
so

u
ri

 R
iv

er
 w

h
er

e 
ri

ve
r c

on
d

it
io

n
s 

al
lo

w
.

•
Su

p
p

or
t 

ef
fic

ie
n

t 
d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

of
 c

om
m

er
ci

al
 a

n
d

 in
-

d
u

st
ri

al
 o

p
er

at
io

n
s 

in
 t

h
e 

So
u

th
b

ri
d

g
e 

In
te

rc
h

an
g

e 
re

-
g

io
n

.

Lo
es

s 
H

ill
s 

Sc
en

ic
 B

yw
ay

Im
ag

e 
so

u
rc

e:
 M

es
se

n
g

er
 N

ew
s

97



P
U

B
LI

C
 IN

FR
A

ST
R

U
C

TU
R

E
 &

 U
TI

LI
TI

E
S

E
xp

an
d

 u
p

o
n

 p
u

b
lic

ly
 a

va
ila

b
le

 i
n

fo
rm

at
io

n
 

o
n

 t
h

e 
W

o
o

d
b

u
ry

 C
o

u
n

ty
 w

eb
si

te
.

•
E

le
ct

ro
n

ic
al

ly
 p

u
b

lis
h

 u
p

-t
o-

d
at

e 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 d

oc
u

m
en

ts
,

m
ee

ti
n

g
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
, a

n
d

 m
ap

s 
fo

r 
al

l c
ou

n
ty

 d
ep

ar
t-

m
en

ts
.

•
Sh

ar
e 

C
ou

n
ty

 d
at

a 
in

 a
 d

ow
n

lo
ad

ab
le

, p
ra

ct
ic

al
 fo

rm
at

.
E

n
co

u
ra

g
e 

en
er

g
y 

ef
fi

ci
en

cy
 f

o
r 

re
si

d
en

ti
al

, 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
, 

an
d

 
in

d
u

st
ri

al
 

co
n

su
m

er
s 

in
 

W
o

o
d

b
u

ry
 C

o
u

n
ty

.
•

B
ri

n
g

 a
w

ar
en

es
s 

to
 e

n
er

g
y 

ef
fic

ie
n

cy
 in

ce
n

ti
ve

 a
n

d
 a

s-
se

ss
m

en
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
s 

av
ai

la
b

le
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 M

id
A

m
er

ic
an

E
n

er
g

y 
an

d
 W

oo
d

b
u

ry
 C

ou
n

ty
 R

E
C

.
Su

p
p

o
rt

 t
ec

h
n

o
lo

g
ic

al
 a

d
va

n
ce

s 
in

 e
n

er
g

y 
p

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

.
•

W
or

k 
w

it
h

 e
n

er
g

y 
p

ro
vi

d
er

s 
to

 d
iv

er
si

fy
 a

n
d

 e
xp

an
d

en
er

g
y 

so
u

rc
es

.
E

n
su

re
 s

af
e 

d
ri

n
k

in
g

 w
at

er
 fo

r a
ll 

ru
ra

l W
o

o
d

-
b

u
ry

 C
o

u
n

ty
 r

es
id

en
ts

•
P

ro
vi

d
e 

ed
u

ca
ti

on
al

 m
at

er
ia

ls
 a

b
ou

t 
th

e 
im

p
or

ta
n

ce
of

 re
g

u
la

r w
el

l i
n

sp
ec

ti
on

s 
an

d
 b

ri
n

g
 a

w
ar

en
es

s 
to

 fr
ee

w
el

l i
n

sp
ec

ti
on

s 
of

fe
re

d
 b

y 
th

e 
co

u
n

ty
•

M
ai

n
ta

in
 c

om
p

lia
n

ce
 w

it
h

 s
ta

te
 a

n
d

 fe
d

er
al

 s
ta

n
d

ar
d

s
fo

r 
co

m
m

u
n

it
y 

w
at

er
 s

ys
te

m
s

P
ro

te
ct

 g
ro

u
n

d
 a

n
d

 s
u

rf
ac

e 
w

at
er

 f
ro

m
 c

o
n

-
ta

m
in

at
io

n
.

•
Se

al
 a

n
d

 r
eg

u
la

rl
y 

in
sp

ec
t 

w
el

lh
ea

d
s 

th
at

 a
re

 n
o 

lo
n

-
g

er
 in

 u
se

.
•

P
ro

vi
d

e 
re

so
u

rc
es

 a
n

d
 i

n
fo

rm
at

io
n

 t
o 

ru
ra

l 
re

si
d

en
ts

ab
ou

t 
se

p
ti

c 
sy

st
em

 m
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
.

•
P

ro
vi

d
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 to
 re

al
to

rs
 a

b
ou

t t
h

e 
ti

m
e 

of
 tr

an
s-

fe
r 

p
ro

ce
ss

 f
or

 s
ep

ti
c 

sy
st

em
 in

sp
ec

ti
on

 w
h

en
 s

el
lin

g
p

ro
p

er
ti

es
.

•
C

on
n

ec
t 

fa
rm

er
s 

an
d

 r
an

ch
er

s 
w

it
h

 t
ec

h
n

ic
al

 a
ss

is
-

ta
n

ce
 a

n
d

 r
es

ou
rc

es
 f

or
 p

re
ve

n
ti

n
g

 f
er

ti
liz

er
 a

n
d

 a
n

i-
m

al
 w

as
te

 r
u

n
of

f .
•

E
n

co
u

ra
g

e 
th

e 
u

se
 o

f 
g

re
en

 in
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

 f
or

 s
to

rm
-

w
at

er
 m

an
ag

em
en

t w
h

er
e 

w
at

er
 c

ar
ry

in
g

 c
on

ce
n

tr
at

-
ed

 c
on

ta
m

in
an

ts
 is

 li
ke

ly
 t

o 
b

e 
in

te
rc

ep
te

d
.

•
A

lig
n

 C
ou

n
ty

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n
 B

oa
rd

 a
ct

io
n

s 
w

it
h

 t
h

e

G
o

al
s

g
oa

ls
 a

n
d

 st
ra

te
g

ie
s o

u
tl

in
ed

 in
 Io

w
a’

s N
on

p
oi

n
t S

ou
rc

e 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
P

la
n

 a
n

d
 c

ol
la

b
or

at
e 

w
it

h
 t

h
e 

Io
w

a 
D

e-
p

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 N

at
u

ra
l 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 t

o 
m

it
ig

at
e 

n
on

p
oi

n
t 

so
u

rc
e 

w
at

er
 p

ol
lu

ti
on

.
E

n
co

u
ra

g
e 

p
ra

ct
ic

es
 t

h
at

 in
cr

ea
se

 w
at

er
 e

ffi
-

ci
en

cy
 a

m
o

n
g

st
 C

o
u

n
ty

 r
es

id
en

ts
, 

co
m

m
er

-
ci

al
 e

st
ab

lis
h

m
en

ts
, i

n
st

it
u

ti
o

n
s,

 a
n

d
 m

u
n

ic
-

ip
al

 u
ti

lit
ie

s.
•

E
n

co
u

ra
g

e 
th

e 
u

se
 o

f s
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

an
d

 b
es

t p
ra

ct
ic

es
 o

u
t-

lin
ed

 in
 t

h
e 

Io
w

a 
A

ss
oc

ia
ti

on
 o

f 
M

u
n

ic
ip

al
 U

ti
lit

ie
s’

 e
f-

fic
ie

n
cy

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n

 w
or

kb
oo

k,
 W

at
er

-
W

is
e.

•
A

d
op

t 
w

at
er

 s
av

in
g

 p
ra

ct
ic

es
 in

 C
ou

n
ty

 b
u

ild
in

g
s.

Im
p

ro
ve

 i
n

te
rn

et
 a

cc
es

s 
fo

r 
ru

ra
l 

W
o

o
d

b
u

ry
 

C
o

u
n

ty
 r

es
id

en
ts

.
•

Ta
ke

 a
d

va
n

ta
g

e 
of

 f
ed

er
al

 a
n

d
 s

ta
te

 s
ou

rc
es

 o
f 

fu
n

d
-

in
g

 to
 im

p
ro

ve
 b

ro
ad

b
an

d
 in

fr
as

tr
u

ct
u

re
 in

 ru
ra

l a
re

as
.

E
xp

an
d

 c
el

lu
la

r 
se

rv
ic

e 
in

 r
u

ra
l 

W
o

o
d

b
u

ry
 

C
o

u
n

ty
. 

•
C

oo
rd

in
at

e 
w

it
h

 t
el

ec
om

m
u

n
ic

at
io

n
s 

co
m

p
an

ie
s 

to
ad

d
re

ss
 a

re
as

 w
it

h
 p

oo
r 

re
ce

p
ti

on
P

ro
m

o
te

 w
as

te
 re

d
u

ct
io

n
 a

n
d

 re
cy

cl
in

g
 p

ra
c-

ti
ce

s.
•

E
n

co
u

ra
g

e 
an

d
 e

d
u

ca
te

 o
n

 in
n

ov
at

iv
e 

in
it

ia
ti

ve
s 

su
ch

 
as

 c
om

m
u

n
it

y 
co

m
p

os
ti

n
g

, 
ya

rd
 w

as
te

 d
is

p
os

al
, 

in
-

st
it

u
ti

on
-l

ev
el

 
w

as
te

 
re

d
u

ct
io

n
 

p
la

n
s 

(g
ov

er
n

m
en

t, 
sc

h
oo

ls
, f

es
ti

va
ls

, e
ve

n
t s

p
ac

es
), 

an
d

 re
p

u
rp

os
-i

n
g

/
re

p
ai

ri
n

g
/b

or
ro

w
in

g
/t

ra
d

in
g

 u
se

d
 it

em
s.

•
R

ed
u

ce
 a

n
d

 e
n

fo
rc

e 
ill

eg
al

 d
u

m
p

in
g

 i
n

 r
u

ra
l 

W
oo

d
-

b
u

ry
 C

ou
n

ty
.

•
P

ro
vi

d
e 

ed
u

ca
ti

on
 o

n
 h

an
d

lin
g

 a
n

d
 d

is
p

os
al

 o
f 

tr
ee

s  
an

d
 b

ru
sh

.
•

C
oo

rd
in

at
e 

ac
ro

ss
 ju

ri
sd

ic
ti

on
s 

to
 a

d
d

re
ss

 w
as

te
 m

an
-

ag
em

en
t 

g
ap

s 
id

en
ti

fie
d

 in
 t

h
e 

20
20

 M
u

n
ic

ip
al

 S
ol

id
 

W
as

te
 (M

SW
) S

at
is

fa
ct

io
n

 S
u

rv
ey

 t
h

at
 w

as
 d

is
tr

ib
u

te
d

 
in

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
of

 t
h

e 
W

oo
d

b
u

ry
 C

ou
n

ty
 A

re
a 

So
lid

 
W

as
te

 A
g

en
cy

’s
 C

om
p

re
h

en
si

ve
 P

la
n

.
•

P
ar

ti
ci

p
at

e 
in

 t
h

e 
St

at
e 

of
 Io

w
a’

s 
So

lid
 W

as
te

 E
n

vi
ro

n
-

m
en

ta
l M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Sy

st
em

s 
(E

M
S)

 p
ro

g
ra

m
.

Im
ag

e 
so

u
rc

e:
 s

io
u

xc
it

yj
o

u
rn

al
.c

o
m

•
C

oo
rd

in
at

e 
ac

ro
ss

 r
eg

io
n

al
 j

u
ri

sd
ic

ti
on

s 
to

 i
m

p
ro

ve
 a

c-
ce

ss
 t

o 
re

cy
cl

in
g

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
in

 r
u

ra
l a

re
as

.
•

Im
p

le
m

en
t 

an
d

 e
n

co
u

ra
g

e 
th

e 
u

ti
liz

at
io

n
 o

f 
p

ro
g

ra
m

s
an

d
 b

es
t 

p
ra

ct
ic

es
 p

ro
vi

d
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

Io
w

a 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
of

N
at

u
ra

l 
R

es
ou

rc
es

’ 
Fi

n
an

ci
al

 a
n

d
 B

u
si

n
es

s 
A

ss
is

ta
n

ce
(F

A
B

A
) d

ep
ar

tm
en

t.
•

C
on

si
d

er
 re

su
lt

s 
of

 th
e 

Io
w

a 
St

at
ew

id
e 

W
as

te
 C

h
ar

ac
te

r-
iz

at
io

n
 S

tu
d

y 
in

 g
oa

l s
et

ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 w
h

en
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 th

e 
cr

e-
at

io
n

 o
r 

ex
p

an
si

on
 o

f 
w

as
te

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
n

d
p

ro
g

ra
m

s.
E

xp
an

d
 t

h
e 

n
et

w
o

rk
 o

f 
p

u
b

lic
 e

le
ct

ri
c 

ve
h

ic
le

 
ch

ar
g

in
g

 s
ta

ti
o

n
s 

to
 r

u
ra

l W
o

o
d

b
u

ry
 C

o
u

n
ty

.
•

C
on

ti
n

u
e 

w
or

k 
w

it
h

 o
th

er
 lo

ca
l, 

re
g

io
n

al
, a

n
d

 s
ta

te
 le

ad
-

er
s 

to
 d

ev
el

op
 a

n
 e

le
ct

ri
c 

ve
h

ic
le

 in
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

 p
la

n
.

•
A

p
p

ly
 fo

r f
ed

er
al

 a
n

d
 s

ta
te

 fu
n

d
in

g
 fo

r r
u

ra
l e

le
ct

ri
c 

ve
h

i-
cl

e 
in

fr
as

tr
u

ct
u

re
.

98



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S 
&

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
E

xp
an

d
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 h
ea

lt
h

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
th

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
ru

ra
l W

o
o

d
b

u
ry

 C
o

u
n

ty
.

 •
W

or
k 

w
it

h
 t

h
e 

Si
ou

xl
an

d
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

H
ea

lt
h

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

to
 e

xp
an

d
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 p
re

ve
n

ta
ti

ve
 h

ea
lt

h
 c

ar
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 
in

 r
u

ra
l c

om
m

u
n

it
ie

s.
 •
C

on
ti

n
u

e 
to

 m
ar

ke
t 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 o
f t

h
e 

Si
ou

xl
an

d
 D

is
-

tr
ic

t H
ea

lt
h

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t w

id
el

y 
ac

ro
ss

 ru
ra

l W
oo

d
b

u
ry

 
C

ou
n

ty
.

 •
E

va
lu

at
e 

em
er

g
en

cy
 m

ed
ic

al
 re

sp
on

se
 t

im
es

 a
n

d
 o

u
t-

co
m

es
 fo

r r
u

ra
l r

es
id

en
ts

 to
 id

en
ti

fy
 h

ow
 th

es
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 
ca

n
 b

e 
im

p
ro

ve
d

.
 •
 C

on
ti

n
u

e 
p

ar
tn

er
in

g
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
R

ol
lin

g
 H

ill
s 

C
om

m
u

n
i-

ty
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

R
eg

io
n

 f
or

 m
en

ta
l h

ea
lt

h
, d

is
ab

ili
ti

es
, a

n
d

 
cr

is
is

 c
ar

e 
se

rv
ic

es
.

 •
R

ef
er

 t
o 

th
e 

Si
ou

xl
an

d
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

H
ea

lt
h

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t’s

 
H

ea
lt

h
 N

ee
d

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
an

d
 H

ea
lt

h
 I

m
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

 fo
r 

g
u

id
an

ce
. 

P
ro

vi
d

e 
m

o
re

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

fo
r 

o
u

td
o

o
r 

re
c-

re
at

io
n

 a
ct

iv
it

ie
s.

 •
M

ai
n

ta
in

 t
h

e 
cu

rr
en

t 
ac

ti
vi

ti
es

 o
f t

h
e 

W
oo

d
b

u
ry

 C
ou

n
-

ty
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n

 B
oa

rd
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

or
t 

th
e 

ex
p

an
si

on
 o

f 

G
o

al
s

th
ei

r 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
in

g
 a

n
d

 s
co

p
e 

of
 w

or
k.

 
 •
Im

p
ro

ve
 th

e 
fu

n
ct

io
n

al
it

y a
n

d
 vi

si
b

ili
ty

 o
f c

ou
n

ty
-o

w
n

ed
 

ri
ve

r 
ac

ce
ss

 p
oi

n
ts

. 
 •
P

ri
or

it
iz

e 
w

at
er

 q
u

al
it

y 
an

d
 r

iv
er

 r
es

to
ra

ti
on

 in
it

ia
ti

ve
s.

 •
P

u
rs

u
e 

op
p

or
tu

n
it

ie
s 

to
 d

ev
el

op
 w

at
er

 t
ra

ils
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
-

ou
t 

th
e 

co
u

n
ty

.
 •
D

ev
el

op
 a

 c
ou

n
ty

w
id

e 
tr

ai
l p

ro
g

ra
m

 c
on

n
ec

ti
n

g
 c

om
-

m
u

n
it

ie
s 

w
it

h
 o

n
e 

an
ot

h
er

 a
n

d
 t

h
e 

co
u

n
ty

 p
ar

k 
n

et
-

w
or

k.
 •
E

va
lu

at
e 

th
e 

co
n

d
it

io
n

 a
n

d
 a

va
ila

b
ili

ty
 o

f c
ou

n
ty

-o
w

n
ed

 
ca

b
in

s 
an

d
 p

ar
k 

sh
el

te
rs

.
In

cr
ea

se
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 f
am

ily
-f

ri
en

d
ly

 a
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

an
d

 c
u

lt
u

ra
l o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 
in

 r
u

ra
l W

o
o

d
b

u
ry

 
C

o
u

n
ty

.
 •
E

n
co

u
ra

g
e 

co
op

er
at

io
n

 a
n

d
 re

so
u

rc
e 

sh
ar

in
g

 b
et

w
ee

n
 

n
ea

rb
y 

to
w

n
s 

to
 c

re
at

e 
an

d
 e

xp
an

d
 u

p
on

 p
ar

ks
 a

n
d

 
re

cr
ea

ti
on

 o
p

p
or

tu
n

it
ie

s 
fo

r 
ru

ra
l r

es
id

en
ts

.
 •
E

xp
an

d
 c

om
m

u
n

it
y 

ed
u

ca
ti

on
 o

p
p

or
tu

n
it

ie
s 

fo
r 

re
si

-
d

en
ts

 o
f r

u
ra

l W
oo

d
b

u
ry

 C
ou

n
ty

 t
h

at
 c

el
eb

ra
te

 t
h

e 
re

-
g

io
n

’s
 h

is
to

ri
ca

l, 
cu

lt
u

ra
l, 

an
d

 n
at

u
ra

l r
es

ou
rc

es
.

St
ri

ve
 t

o
 o

ff
er

 t
h

e 
m

o
st

 e
ffi

ci
en

t,
 c

o
st

-e
ff

ec
-

ti
ve

, a
n

d
 u

se
r-

fr
ie

n
d

ly
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

s 
p

o
ss

ib
le

.
 •
Im

p
ro

ve
 d

ig
it

al
 o

p
er

at
io

n
s 

to
 m

ax
im

iz
e 

ac
ce

ss
ib

ili
ty

 
an

d
 t

h
e 

av
ai

la
b

ili
ty

 o
f p

u
b

lic
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 d
at

a.
 •
St

re
am

lin
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

d
el

iv
er

y 
an

d
 o

p
er

at
io

n
s.

P
ro

vi
d

e 
ad

eq
u

at
e 

p
o

lic
e,

 fi
re

, a
n

d
 e

m
er

g
en

-
cy

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

se
rv

ic
es

 f
o

r 
al

l 
W

o
o

d
b

u
ry

 
C

o
u

n
ty

 r
es

id
en

ts
.

 •
M

ai
n

ta
in

 c
oo

p
er

at
iv

e 
ag

re
em

en
ts

 (
28

E
) 

fo
r 

em
er

g
en

-
cy

 a
n

d
 p

u
b

lic
 s

af
et

y 
se

rv
ic

es
.

 •
E

n
co

u
ra

g
e 

fr
eq

u
en

t t
ra

in
in

g
 o

p
p

or
tu

n
it

ie
s f

or
 a

ll 
em

er
-

g
en

cy
 s

er
vi

ce
 p

ro
vi

d
er

s.
 •
E

n
su

re
 a

d
eq

u
at

e 
fu

n
d

in
g

 fo
r e

m
er

g
en

cy
 re

sp
on

se
 a

c-
ti

vi
ti

es
.

Im
ag

e 
so

u
rc

e:
 S

io
u

xl
an

d
n

ew
s.

co
m

Im
ag

e 
so

u
rc

e:
 W

oo
d

b
u

ry
 C

ou
n

ty
Im

ag
e 

so
u

rc
e:

 S
io

u
xc

it
yj

ou
rn

al
.c

om

99



LA
N

D
 U

SE
 &

 N
A

TU
R

A
L 

R
E

SO
U

R
C

E
S

Su
p

p
o

rt
 s

u
st

ai
n

ab
le

 a
g

ri
cu

lt
u

ra
l p

ra
ct

ic
es

.
•

E
n

su
re

 c
om

p
lia

n
ce

 w
it

h
 Io

w
a 

st
at

e 
co

d
e 

p
ro

vi
si

on
s 

fo
r

ag
ri

cu
lt

u
ra

lly
-z

on
ed

 p
ro

p
er

ty
.

•
P

ro
m

ot
e 

th
e 

u
se

 o
f 

ag
ri

cu
lt

u
ra

l 
b

es
t 

m
an

ag
em

en
t

p
ra

ct
ic

es
 t

o 
re

d
u

ce
 s

oi
l 

an
d

 f
er

ti
liz

er
 r

u
n

of
f, 

p
ro

te
ct

w
at

er
 q

u
al

it
y,

 a
n

d
 m

an
ag

e 
an

im
al

 w
as

te
.

•
E

n
co

u
ra

g
e 

p
ar

ti
ci

p
at

io
n

 in
 fe

d
er

al
 in

ce
n

ti
ve

 p
ro

g
ra

m
s

th
at

 p
ay

 fa
rm

er
s 

an
d

 ra
n

ch
er

s 
fo

r t
h

e 
im

p
le

m
en

ta
ti

on
of

 c
on

se
rv

at
io

n
 b

es
t 

p
ra

ct
ic

es
.

•
C

on
si

d
er

 t
h

e 
u

se
 o

f s
lid

in
g

 s
ca

le
 z

on
in

g
 to

 p
re

ve
n

t 
th

e
fr

ag
m

en
ta

ti
on

 o
f l

ar
g

e 
tr

ac
ts

 o
f f

ar
m

la
n

d
.

•
A

d
vo

ca
te

 f
or

 t
h

e 
p

re
se

rv
at

io
n

 o
f 

ag
ri

cu
lt

u
re

 in
 u

rb
an

fr
in

g
e 

ar
ea

s 
n

ot
 id

en
ti

fie
d

 in
 t

h
e 

fu
tu

re
 la

n
d

 u
se

 m
ap

fo
r 

u
rb

an
 g

ro
w

th
.

•
C

on
n

ec
t s

m
al

l a
n

d
 m

id
-s

iz
ed

 fa
rm

 b
u

si
n

es
se

s w
it

h
 su

c-
ce

ss
io

n
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
n

d
 t

ec
h

n
ic

al
 a

ss
is

ta
n

ce
.

•
C

re
at

e 
a 

ro
u

n
d

ta
b

le
 o

f 
fa

rm
er

s 
an

d
 lo

ca
l a

g
ri

cu
lt

u
ra

l
b

u
si

n
es

se
s 

to
 v

oi
ce

 c
on

ce
rn

s 
an

d
 n

ee
d

ed
 re

so
u

rc
es

 to
m

ai
n

ta
in

 s
u

st
ai

n
ab

le
 b

u
si

n
es

s 
op

er
at

io
n

s.
•

A
d

vo
ca

te
 f

or
 t

h
e 

ad
op

ti
on

 o
f 

lo
ca

l 
fo

od
 p

u
rc

h
as

in
g

p
ol

ic
ie

s 
th

at
 s

u
p

p
or

t 
p

u
b

lic
 a

n
d

 in
st

it
u

ti
on

al
 p

ro
cu

re
-

m
en

t 
fr

om
 s

m
al

l a
n

d
 m

id
-s

iz
ed

 lo
ca

l f
ar

m
er

s.
P

re
se

rv
e 

en
vi

ro
n

m
en

ta
lly

 s
en

si
ti

ve
 la

n
d

s.
•

C
on

si
d

er
 t

h
e 

m
an

n
er

 i
n

 w
h

ic
h

 e
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
ta

lly
 s

en
-

si
ti

ve
 la

n
d

s 
ar

e 
d

ev
el

op
ed

, i
n

cl
u

d
in

g
 w

et
la

n
d

s,
 fl

oo
d

-
p

la
in

s,
 p

ri
m

e 
ag

ri
cu

lt
u

re
, 

w
ild

lif
e 

h
ab

it
at

, 
an

d
 o

p
en

sp
ac

e 
fo

r 
re

cr
ea

ti
on

.
•

E
n

co
u

ra
g

e 
co

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

 a
n

d
 c

oo
p

er
at

io
n

 b
et

w
ee

n
en

vi
ro

n
m

en
ta

l 
ad

vo
ca

te
s 

an
d

 l
an

d
ow

n
er

s 
re

la
te

d
 t

o
d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

of
 s

en
si

ti
ve

 la
n

d
.

•
St

re
n

g
th

en
 e

ro
si

on
 c

on
tr

ol
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

an
d

 g
ra

d
e 

an
d

 e
x-

ca
va

ti
on

 li
m

it
at

io
n

s 
fo

r d
ev

el
op

m
en

t i
n

 th
e 

Lo
es

s 
H

ill
s.

•
E

n
co

u
ra

g
e 

la
n

d
ow

n
er

 p
ar

ti
ci

p
at

io
n

 in
 fe

d
er

al
 c

on
se

r-
va

ti
on

 e
as

em
en

t 
p

ro
g

ra
m

s 
th

at
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 i
n

-
ce

n
ti

ve
s 

fo
r 

sa
fe

g
u

ar
d

in
g

 n
at

u
ra

l 
re

so
u

rc
es

 o
n

 t
h

ei
r

p
ro

p
er

ty
.

•
C

on
ti

n
u

e 
ad

d
in

g
 to

 th
e 

co
u

n
ty

’s
 n

et
w

or
k 

of
 p

ar
ks

, t
ra

ils
,

an
d

 c
am

p
g

ro
u

n
d

s.
•

C
oo

rd
in

at
e 

ac
ro

ss
 ju

ri
sd

ic
ti

on
s 

to
 a

d
d

re
ss

 li
tt

er
 a

n
d

 th
e

d
u

m
p

in
g

 o
f w

as
te

.

Li
m

it
 u

rb
an

 s
p

ra
w

l 
an

d
 m

ai
n

ta
in

 t
h

e 
ru

ra
l 

ch
ar

-
ac

te
r 

o
f 

W
o

o
d

b
u

ry
 C

o
u

n
ty

.
•

P
ri

or
it

iz
e 

th
e 

re
h

ab
ili

ta
ti

on
 o

f 
ex

is
ti

n
g

 h
ou

si
n

g
 s

to
ck

an
d

 i
n

fil
l 

d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
b

ef
or

e 
b

u
ild

in
g

 o
n

 p
re

vi
ou

s-
ly

-u
n

d
ev

el
op

ed
 la

n
d

.
•

C
on

si
d

er
 t

h
e 

lif
et

im
e 

co
st

s 
of

 n
ew

 i
n

fr
as

tr
u

ct
u

re
 d

e-
ve

lo
p

m
en

t.
•

Li
m

it
 i

n
te

rs
ta

te
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

to
 i

n
te

rc
h

an
g

es
 o

r 
to

w
it

h
in

 c
it

y 
ju

ri
sd

ic
ti

on
s 

to
 p

re
se

rv
e 

ag
ri

cu
lt

u
ra

l 
la

n
d

an
d

 m
ai

n
ta

in
 s

ce
n

ic
 v

ie
w

s 
of

 t
h

e 
Lo

es
s 

H
ill

s.
•

D
is

co
u

ra
g

e 
le

ap
-f

ro
g

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
u

ts
id

e 
of

 in
co

rp
o-

ra
te

d
 c

it
ie

s 
an

d
 li

m
it

 d
en

si
ty

 in
 u

n
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 a

re
as

.
•

G
u

id
e 

fu
tu

re
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

of
 n

on
-a

g
ri

cu
lt

u
ra

l u
se

s 
to

a 
co

m
p

ac
t p

at
te

rn
 b

y 
ef

fic
ie

n
t a

n
d

 e
co

n
om

ic
al

 e
xp

an
-

si
on

 o
f p

u
b

lic
 in

fr
as

tr
u

ct
u

re
.

E
m

p
ow

er
 la

n
d

o
w

n
er

s 
to

 b
e 

a 
p

ar
tn

er
 in

 c
o

m
b

at
-

ti
n

g
 e

co
lo

g
ic

al
ly

 a
n

d
 e

co
n

o
m

ic
al

ly
 h

ar
m

fu
l i

n
va

-
si

ve
 a

n
d

 n
ox

io
u

s 
sp

ec
ie

s.
 

•
E

d
u

ca
te

 t
h

e 
p

u
b

lic
 a

b
ou

t 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

id
en

ti
fic

at
io

n
, c

on
-

tr
ol

, a
n

d
 d

is
p

os
al

 o
f i

n
va

si
ve

 s
p

ec
ie

s.
•

D
is

tr
ib

u
te

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 a
b

ou
t p

ro
p

er
 d

is
p

os
al

 o
f w

oo
d

y
d

eb
ri

s 
an

d
 b

ru
sh

 f
ro

m
 p

ri
va

te
 p

ro
p

er
ty

, a
n

d
 h

ow
 t

o
h

an
d

le
 w

oo
d

y 
d

eb
ri

s 
th

at
 h

as
 b

ee
n

 im
p

ac
te

d
 b

y 
in

va
-

si
ve

 s
p

ec
ie

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
th

e 
E

m
er

al
d

 A
sh

 B
or

er
.

R
ed

u
ce

 c
o

n
ta

m
in

an
ts

 in
 s

u
rf

ac
e 

w
at

er
 r

u
n

o
ff

. 

•
P

ro
vi

d
e 

re
so

u
rc

es
 f

or
 f

ar
m

er
s 

to
 a

d
op

t 
be

st
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

pr
ac

tic
es

 s
u

ch
 a

sČ
n

o-
ti

ll 
m

et
h

od
s 

an
d

 
co

ve
r 

cr
op

s,
 t

o 
re

d
u

ce
 n

u
tr

ie
n

tČ
lo

ad
s 

en
te

ri
n

g
 

w
at

er
w

ay
s 

as
 n

on
-p

oi
n

t 
so

u
rc

e 
p

ol
lu

-t
io

n
. 

R
ef

er
 t

o 
th

e 
Io

w
a 

N
u

tr
ie

n
t 

R
ed

u
ct

io
n

 S
tr

at
eg

y,
Č

an
d

 
p

ro
g

ra
m

s 
of

 t
h

e 
U

SD
A

’s
 N

at
io

n
al

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 C

on
-

se
rv

at
io

n
 S

er
vi

ce
 fo

r 
fa

rm
er

s 
in

 n
ee

d
 o

f a
ss

is
ta

n
ce

.
•

C
on

ti
n

u
e 

se
n

si
b

le
 s

al
ti

n
g

 p
ol

ic
ie

s.
•

E
d

u
ca

te
 re

si
d

en
ts

 a
n

d
 b

u
si

n
es

s 
ow

n
er

s 
of

 p
ro

p
er

 la
w

n
Č

fe
rt

ili
ze

r 
an

d
 c

h
em

ic
al

 u
se

.
•

Li
m

it
 th

e 
d

en
si

ty
 o

f p
ro

p
er

ti
es

 re
q

u
ir

in
g

 in
d

iv
id

u
al

 s
ep

-
ti

c 
sy

st
em

s,
 m

ai
n

ta
in

 s
tr

in
g

en
t 

st
an

d
ar

d
s 

fo
r 

sy
st

em
Č

in
sp

ec
ti

on
s,

 a
n

d
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

re
so

u
rc

es
 fo

r h
om

eo
w

n
er

s 
to

Č
as

si
st

 in
 m

ai
n

ta
in

in
g

 t
h

es
e 

sy
st

em
s.

Sa
fe

g
u

ar
d

 g
ro

u
n

d
w

at
er

 b
y 

id
en

ti
fy

in
g

 a
n

d
 li

m
it

-
in

g
 s

o
u

rc
es

 o
f 

p
o

llu
ti

o
n

. 
•

E
n

co
u

ra
g

e 
la

n
d

ow
n

er
s 

to
 t

ak
e 

ad
va

n
ta

g
e 

of
 t

h
e 

Io
w

a
D

N
R

’s
 

w
el

lh
ea

d
 

p
ro

te
ct

io
n

 
p

ro
g

ra
m

 
th

at
 

p
ro

vi
d

es
co

st
-s

h
ar

in
g

 a
n

d
 a

ss
is

ta
n

ce
 f

or
 s

ea
lin

g
 u

n
u

se
d

 w
el

ls
,

an
d

 p
la

n
ti

n
g

 n
it

ra
te

-r
em

ed
ia

ti
n

g
 p

la
n

ts
 n

ea
r 

ac
ti

ve
w

el
lh

ea
d

s.
Id

en
ti

fy
 p

o
te

n
ti

al
 s

o
u

rc
es

 o
f 

ai
r 

q
u

al
it

y 
h

az
ar

d
s 

in
 W

o
o

d
b

u
ry

 C
o

u
n

ty
.

•
M

ai
n

ta
in

 a
 n

et
w

or
k 

of
 l

ow
-c

os
t 

ai
r 

q
u

al
it

y 
m

on
it

or
s

th
ro

u
g

h
ou

t 
th

e 
ru

ra
l c

ou
n

ty
.

M
ai

n
ta

in
 s

af
e 

d
is

ta
n

ce
s 

b
et

w
ee

n
 i

n
d

u
st

ri
al

 l
an

d
 

u
se

 a
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

an
d

 re
si

d
en

ti
al

, c
o

m
m

er
ci

al
, a

n
d

 in
-

st
it

u
ti

o
n

al
 la

n
d

 u
se

s.
•

E
n

su
re

 t
h

at
 n

o 
re

si
d

en
ti

al
 c

om
m

u
n

it
ie

s 
ar

e 
im

p
ac

t-
ed

 o
r 

h
ar

m
ed

 b
y 

of
f-

si
te

 i
n

d
u

st
ri

al
 a

ct
iv

it
ie

s,
 s

u
ch

 a
s

tr
u

ck
in

g
 r

ou
te

s 
or

 ra
ily

ar
d

 a
ir

 h
az

ar
d

s.
P

la
n

 f
o

r 
th

e 
cr

ea
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 u

se
 o

f 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
an

d
 

re
n

ew
ab

le
 e

n
er

g
y 

so
u

rc
es

 in
 W

o
o

d
b

u
ry

 C
o

u
n

ty
.

•
Su

p
p

or
t 

la
n

d
ow

n
er

s’
 in

d
iv

id
u

al
 c

h
oi

ce
s 

to
 im

p
le

m
en

t
re

n
ew

ab
le

 e
n

er
g

y 
in

fr
as

tr
u

ct
u

re
.

•
C

on
ti

n
u

ou
sl

y 
u

p
d

at
e 

p
ol

ic
ie

s 
th

at
 r

eg
u

la
te

 r
en

ew
ab

le
en

er
g

y 
in

fr
as

tr
u

ct
u

re
 t

o 
en

su
re

 t
h

at
 it

 d
oe

s 
n

ot
 p

re
s-

en
t 

sa
fe

ty
 h

az
ar

d
s 

an
d

 t
o 

m
in

im
iz

e 
d

is
ru

p
ti

on
s 

to
 s

u
r-

ro
u

n
d

in
g

 la
n

d
 u

se
s.

•
Se

ek
 f

ed
er

al
 a

n
d

 s
ta

te
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 f

or
 t

h
e 

ex
p

an
si

on
 o

f
el

ec
tr

ic
 v

eh
ic

le
 c

h
ar

g
in

g
 in

fr
as

tr
u

ct
u

re
.

Im
ag

e 
so

u
rc

e:
 s

io
u

xc
it

yj
ou

rn
al

.c
om

G
o

al
s

100



D
R

A
F

T 
FU

TU
R

E
 L

A
N

D
 U

SE
 M

A
P

P
le

as
e 

n
ot

e:
 A

 la
n

d
 

u
se

 m
ap

 d
oe

s 
N

O
T 

d
en

ot
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

or
 fu

-
tu

re
 z

on
in

g
. I

t 
d

oe
s 

N
O

T 
d

ic
ta

te
 w

h
at

 
m

u
st

 o
cc

u
r 

on
 a

n
y 

in
-

d
iv

id
u

al
s’

 p
ro

p
er

ty
.

Th
e 

p
u

rp
os

e 
of

 a
 la

n
d

 
u

se
 m

ap
 is

 to
 il

lu
st

ra
te

 
ex

p
ec

te
d

 a
n

d
 d

es
ir

ed
 

fu
tu

re
 

d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
p

at
te

rn
s.

 

It
 

is
 

a 
co

m
m

u
n

it
y’

s 
vi

si
on

 f
or

 t
h

e 
fu

tu
re

 
th

at
 

b
ro

ad
ly

 
g

u
id

es
 

th
e 

d
en

si
ty

, c
h

ar
ac

te
r, 

an
d

 l
oc

at
io

n
 o

f 
la

n
d

 
u

se
s.

 

La
n

d
 u

se
s 

ill
u

st
ra

te
d

 
b

y 
th

e 
m

ap
 i

n
cl

u
d

e 
in

d
u

st
ri

al
, 

co
m

m
er

-
ci

al
, a

g
ri

cu
lt

u
ra

l, o
p

en
 

sp
ac

e,
 a

n
d

 re
si

d
en

ti
al

 
ac

ti
vi

ti
es

.

BR
ON

SO
N

PI
ER

SO
N

OT
O

CU
SH

IN
G

SI
OU

X 
CI

TY

CO
RR

EC
TI

ON
VI

LL
E

M
OV

IL
LE

AN
TH

ON

SM
IT

HL
AN

D
HO

RN
IC

K
DA

NB
UR

Y

SE
RG

EA
NT

BL
UF

F

LA
W

TO
N

SL
OA

N

SA
LI

X

UV24
3

UV105

UV14
1

UV982

UV140
UV12

UV175

UV31

UV35

UV31

UV110

£¤7
7

£¤2
0

£¤7
7

£¤7
5

£¤7
5

£¤7
5

£¤2
0

£¤2
0

£¤7
7

£¤7
5

§̈¦12
9

§̈¦29

§̈ ¦29
Le
ge
nd

Ag
ric

ul
tu

re
Co

m
m

er
cia

l
In

du
st

ria
l

W
in

ne
ba

go
 R

es
er

va
tio

n
Op

en
 S

pa
ce

/R
ec

re
at

io
n

Ru
ra

l R
es

id
en

tia
l

Tr
an

sit
io

na
l A

gr
icu

ltu
re

In
co

rp
er

at
ed

 A
re

as

Dr
af

t F
ut

ur
e 

La
nd

 U
se

 M
ap

0
3

6 M
ile
s

101



D
IS

A
ST

E
R

 R
E

SP
O

N
SE

, 
R

E
C

O
V

E
R

Y,
 A

N
D

 R
E

SI
LI

E
N

C
Y

C
o

o
rd

in
at

e 
d

is
as

te
r 

re
sp

o
n

se
, r

ec
ov

er
y 

an
d

 re
si

l-
ie

n
cy

 e
ff

o
rt

s 
am

o
n

g
 j

u
ri

sd
ic

ti
o

n
s,

 c
o

u
n

ty
, s

ta
te

, 
an

d
 f

ed
er

al
 a

g
en

ci
es

. 
 •
Fo

st
er

 i
n

te
ra

g
en

cy
 a

g
re

em
en

ts
 t

o 
b

ol
st

er
 r

es
p

on
se

 
an

d
 r

ec
ov

er
y 

to
 e

m
er

g
en

cy
 a

n
d

 d
is

as
te

r 
ev

en
ts

 a
n

d
 

en
co

u
ra

g
e 

re
so

u
rc

e 
sh

ar
in

g
.

 •
K

ee
p

 o
p

en
 l

in
es

 o
f 

co
m

m
u

n
ic

at
io

n
 b

et
w

ee
n

 C
ou

n
ty

 
d

ep
ar

tm
en

ts
 a

n
d

 s
u

rr
ou

n
d

in
g

 ju
ri

sd
ic

ti
on

s 
an

d
 c

ou
n

-
ti

es
.

 •
W

or
k 

w
it

h
 S

ta
te

 a
n

d
 F

ed
er

al
 o

ffi
ci

al
s 

in
 p

re
p

ar
at

io
n

 o
f 

an
d

 re
sp

on
se

 to
 d

is
as

te
r 

d
ec

la
ra

ti
on

s 
an

d
 s

u
b

se
q

u
en

t 
d

is
as

te
r 

re
lie

f e
ff

or
ts

.
E

n
co

u
ra

g
e 

p
as

si
ve

 d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

w
it

h
in

 1
0

0
-y

r 
fl

o
o

d
p

la
in

 a
re

as
.

 •
W

or
k 

to
 e

n
su

re
 th

at
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 a
re

as
 w

it
h

in
 fl

oo
d

p
la

in
s 

ar
e 

sa
fe

 a
n

d
 s

ec
u

re
.

 •
Ta

ke
 a

d
va

n
ta

g
e 

of
 st

at
e 

an
d

 fe
d

er
al

 p
ro

g
ra

m
s d

es
ig

n
ed

 
to

 a
id

, r
el

oc
at

e,
 o

r d
em

ol
is

h
 p

ro
p

er
ti

es
 w

it
h

in
 h

ig
h

-r
is

k 
flo

od
 a

re
as

 w
h

en
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

.
 •
C

on
si

d
er

 s
it

e 
p

la
n

 d
es

ig
n

, b
es

t 
b

u
ild

in
g

 p
ra

ct
ic

es
, a

n
d

 
fe

d
er

al
 s

ta
n

d
ar

d
s 

w
h

en
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

w
it

h
in

 a
 fl

oo
d

-
p

la
in

 o
cc

u
rs

.
Su

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ty

 E
m

er
g

en
cy

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d

 E
m

er
g

en
cy

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

ts
’ m

is
si

o
n

s 
to

 p
ro

vi
d

e 
th

e 
m

o
st

 e
ffi

ci
en

t 
se

rv
ic

es
 t

o
 W

o
o

d
-

b
u

ry
 C

o
u

n
ty

 a
n

d
 to

 m
it

ig
at

e 
ag

ai
n

st
, p

re
p

ar
e 

fo
r,

 
re

sp
o

n
d

 t
o

, a
n

d
 r

ec
ov

er
 f

ro
m

 a
ll 

d
is

as
te

rs
.

 •
W

or
k 

to
 c

om
p

le
te

 t
h

e 
W

oo
d

b
u

ry
 C

ou
n

ty
 a

ct
io

n
 it

em
s 

id
en

ti
fie

d
 in

 th
e 

20
20

 R
eg

io
n

al
 H

az
ar

d
 M

it
ig

at
io

n
 P

la
n

, 
an

d
 fu

tu
re

 a
p

p
ro

ve
d

 p
la

n
s.

 •
C

oo
rd

in
at

e 
an

d
 p

ar
ti

ci
p

at
e 

in
 t

ra
in

in
g

 e
xe

rc
is

es
 w

it
h

-
in

 t
h

e 
re

g
io

n
 t

o 
st

re
n

g
th

en
 r

es
p

on
se

 t
o 

an
d

 r
ec

ov
er

y 
fr

om
 e

m
er

g
en

ci
es

.
 •
W

or
k 

to
 e

d
u

ca
te

 t
h

e 
p

u
b

lic
 o

n
 d

is
as

te
r 

p
re

p
ar

ed
n

es
s,

 
re

co
ve

ry
, a

n
d

 r
es

ili
en

cy
. 

 •
C

on
ti

n
u

e 
p

ar
ti

ci
p

at
io

n
 in

 t
h

e 
Lo

ca
l E

m
er

g
en

cy
 M

an
-

ag
em

en
t 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 fo
r 

th
e 

re
g

io
n

.
 •
E

m
p

lo
y 

an
d

 u
p

d
at

e 
th

e 
W

oo
d

b
u

ry
 C

ou
n

ty
 J

oi
n

t E
m

er
-

G
o

al
s

g
en

cy
 O

p
er

at
io

n
s 

B
as

ic
 P

la
n

 a
s 

re
q

u
ir

ed
 b

y 
Io

w
a 

St
at

e 
C

od
e 

29
c.

 •
E

n
su

re
 a

d
eq

u
at

e 
fu

n
d

in
g

 t
o 

m
ai

n
ta

in
 a

 h
ig

h
 le

ve
l o

f 
em

er
g

en
cy

 o
p

er
at

io
n

s 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e 

C
ou

n
ty

.
C

o
n

ti
n

u
e 

su
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 

th
e 

Si
o

u
xl

an
d

 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

H
ea

lt
h

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t i

n
 th

ei
r m

is
si

o
n

 to
 le

ad
 a

 “
co

l-
la

b
o

ra
ti

ve
 e

ff
o

rt
 t

o
 b

u
ild

 a
 h

ea
lt

h
ie

r 
co

m
m

u
n

it
y 

th
ro

u
g

h
 im

p
ro

ve
d

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 h

ea
lt

h
 s

er
vi

ce
s,

 e
d

-
u

ca
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 d

is
ea

se
 p

re
ve

n
ti

o
n

.”
 •
C

on
ti

n
u

e 
W

oo
d

b
u

ry
 C

ou
n

ty
 E

m
er

g
en

cy
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
an

d
 E

m
er

g
en

cy
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ts

’ 
p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

an
d

 p
ar

ti
ci

p
at

io
n

 in
 t

h
e 

Se
rv

ic
e 

A
re

a 
3 

H
ea

lt
h

ca
re

 c
o-

al
it

io
n

. 
 •
Su

p
p

or
t 

th
e 

im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
on

 o
f t

h
e 

Si
ou

xl
an

d
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

H
ea

lt
h

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t’s
 

C
om

m
u

n
it

y 
H

ea
lt

h
 

Im
p

ro
ve

-
m

en
t 

P
la

n
 f

or
 t

h
e 

Si
ou

xl
an

d
 C

om
m

u
n

it
y 

d
ev

el
op

ed
 

fr
om

 t
h

e 
th

re
e-

ye
ar

 C
om

m
u

n
it

y 
H

ea
lt

h
 N

ee
d

s 
A

ss
es

s-
m

en
t 

fo
r 

th
e 

Si
ou

xl
an

d
 C

om
m

u
n

it
y.

 •
C

oo
rd

in
at

e 
w

it
h

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
or

t 
th

e 
Si

ou
xl

an
d

 C
om

m
u

-
n

it
y 

H
ea

lt
h

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

in
 r

es
p

on
se

s 
to

 p
u

b
lic

 h
ea

lt
h

 
em

er
g

en
ci

es
. 

Su
p

p
o

rt
 th

e 
re

co
ve

ry
 a

n
d

 re
si

lie
n

cy
 o

f i
n

d
u

st
ri

es
, 

b
u

si
n

es
se

s,
 a

n
d

 h
o

m
es

 in
 t

h
e 

ev
en

t 
o

f 
a 

n
at

u
ra

l 
o

r 
p

u
b

lic
 h

ea
lt

h
 d

is
as

te
r.

 
 •
E

n
su

re
 r

el
ia

b
le

 in
te

rn
et

 a
n

d
 t

el
ec

om
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

s 
se

r-
vi

ce
s 

to
 k

ee
p

 p
h

ys
ic

al
 a

n
d

 h
om

e-
b

as
ed

 b
u

si
n

es
se

s’
 

w
eb

 o
p

er
at

io
n

s 
in

 p
la

ce
 in

 n
at

u
ra

l o
r 

p
u

b
lic

 h
ea

lt
h

 d
i-

sa
st

er
 s

it
u

at
io

n
s.

 •
P

ri
or

it
iz

e 
fu

n
d

in
g

 a
n

y 
ec

on
om

ic
 r

el
ie

f 
p

ro
g

ra
m

s 
p

u
t 

in
 p

la
ce

 a
ft

er
 d

is
as

te
r 

si
tu

at
io

n
s 

fo
r 

en
ti

ti
es

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

h
ig

h
es

t 
n

ee
d

.
 •
P

ro
m

ot
e 

av
ai

la
b

le
 lo

ca
l, 

st
at

e,
 a

n
d

 fe
d

er
al

 re
so

u
rc

es
 fo

r 
ec

on
om

ic
 r

ec
ov

er
y 

fr
om

 d
is

as
te

rs
.

 •
A

llo
w

 fo
r fl

ex
ib

ili
ty

 in
 o

rd
in

an
ce

s 
to

 e
n

co
u

ra
g

e 
th

e 
co

n
-

ti
n

u
it

y 
of

 b
u

si
n

es
s 

op
er

at
io

n
s 

w
h

ic
h

 m
ay

 b
e 

d
is

ru
p

t-
ed

 d
u

e 
to

 p
u

b
lic

 h
ea

lt
h

 d
ir

ec
ti

ve
s 

d
u

ri
n

g
 p

u
b

lic
 h

ea
lt

h
 

em
er

g
en

ci
es

.

E
n

su
re

 r
es

id
en

ts
’ 

ac
ce

ss
 t

o
 s

af
e,

 h
ea

lt
h

y,
 a

n
d

 
ef

fi
ci

en
t 

h
o

m
es

 t
h

at
 a

re
 p

re
p

ar
ed

 t
o

 w
it

h
st

an
d

 
in

cr
ea

si
n

g
ly

 f
re

q
u

en
t 

se
ve

re
 a

n
d

 u
n

p
re

d
ic

ta
b

le
 

w
ea

th
er

.
 •
P

ro
m

ot
e 

th
e 

u
se

 o
f 

h
ea

lt
h

y 
an

d
 s

af
e 

b
u

ild
in

g
 m

at
er

i-
al

s,
 h

ig
h

 i
n

d
oo

r 
ai

r 
q

u
al

it
y,

 a
n

d
 e

n
vi

ro
n

m
en

ts
 f

re
e 

of
 

p
es

ts
, r

ad
on

, m
ol

d
, a

n
d

 o
th

er
 h

ea
lt

h
 h

az
ar

d
s.

 •
E

n
co

u
ra

g
e 

en
er

g
y-

 a
n

d
 w

at
er

- 
ef

fic
ie

n
cy

 in
 h

om
e 

re
t-

ro
fit

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
an

d
 n

ew
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

 a
n

d
 t

h
e 

u
se

 o
f o

n
-

si
te

 r
en

ew
ab

le
 e

n
er

g
y 

sy
st

em
s.

 •
P

ro
vi

d
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 a
b

ou
t h

ow
 to

 p
ro

te
ct

 h
om

es
 fr

om
 

flo
od

in
g

 in
 p

re
p

ar
at

io
n

 fo
r i

n
cr

ea
si

n
g

ly
 fr

eq
u

en
t h

ea
vy

 
ra

in
 e

ve
n

ts
.

Im
ag

e 
so

u
rc

e:
 k

sc
j.c

om

102




